
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

Application: Global Community Charter School 
Bill Holmes - bholmes@globalcommunitycs.org 
2020-2021 Annual Report 

Entry 1 School Info and Cover Page 

Completed Oct 13 2021 

Instructions 

Required of ALL Charter Schools 

Each Annual Report begins with a completed School Information and Cover Page. The information is 
collected in a survey format within Annual Report portal. When entering information in the portal, some 
of the following items may not appear, depending on your authorizer and/or your responses to related 
items. 

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page 

(New schools that were not open for instruction for the 2020-2021 school year are not required 

to complete or submit an annual report this year). 

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the 

other tasks assigned to you by your school's authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this 

cover page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2021) or you may 

not be assigned the correct tasks. 

BASIC INFORMATION 

a. SCHOOL NAME 

(Select name from the drop down menu) 

GLOBAL COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 310500861012 
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a1. Popular School Name 

GCCS 

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of June 30th, 2021) 

Please select the correct authorizer as of June 30, 2021 or you may not be assigned the correct tasks. 

BOARD OF REGENTS 

c. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION 

CSD # 5 - MANHATTAN 

d. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 

9/2011 

e. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR INSTRUCTION 

9/2012 
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f. APPROVED SCHOOL MISSION (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools only) 

MISSION STATEMENT 

Global Community Charter School (GCCS) serves Harlem and the surrounding community by providing 

students in grades K through 5 with an education that is rigorous, inquiry-based, and teaches students 

and families to work together across differences in language, culture, economic background, age, and 

nationality. GCCS prepares students for admission to a challenging secondary education and to exhibit 
the courage and conviction to make a difference. 

g. KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized schools only) 

KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS (Briefly describe each Key Design Elements (KDE) as presented in the schools 

approved charter. KDEs are those general aspects of the school that are innovative or unique to the 

school’s mission and goals, are core to the school’s overall design, and are critical to its success. 

KDE 1 

KDE 2 

KDE 3 

Multiple forms of evidence: Student progress is 

measured through multiple forms of evidence, 
including the assessments and through projects, 
portfolios, and written and oral 
tasks. 

International Baccalaureate Primary Years 

Programme (PYP): GCCS offers transdisciplinary 

units aligned with the PYP. The school’s curriculum 

and instruction will encourage students with 

diverse backgrounds and languages to become 

inquiring, knowledgeable, and supportive of each 

other. To support the needs of all learners, 
including students with disabilities, English 

language learners, and economically 

disadvantaged students, GCCS will integrate 

additional resources and programs with the PYP. 

Professional Learning Community: GCCS offers 

teachers with regular opportunities to share 

observations, knowledge, and experiences, and 

plan instruction. The GCCS schedule provides more 

3 / 40 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

than one hour of common planning every day for 
teachers in addition to weekly grade-level planning 

meetings. During common planning time, teachers 

can work together to design tasks, to facilitate 

group work, to confer with individual students, and 

to differentiate ways in which students participate 

in class activities. 

KDE 4 Visual and Performing Arts Integration: All students 

attend music, dance, and media class. The arts are 

integrated throughout core classes as well, as part 
of the transdisciplinary and project-based learning 

in place at the school. 

KDE 5 (No response) 

KDE 6 (No response) 

KDE 7 (No response) 

KDE 8 (No response) 

KDE 9 (No response) 

KDE 10 (No response) 

Need additional space for variables 

No 

h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL) 

www.globalcommunitycs.org 
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525 

463 

i. TOTAL MAX APPROVED ENROLLMENT FOR THE 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

j. TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT ON JUNE 30, 2021 (exclude Pre-K program enrollment) 

k. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2020-2021 (exclude Pre-K program students) 

Check all that apply 

Grades Served K, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 

l1. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT WITH A CHARTER OR EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT 

ORGANIZATION? 

No 

FACILITIES INFORMATION 

m. FACILITIES 

Will the school maintain or operate multiple sites in 2021-2022? 

Yes, 2 sites 

5 / 40 





	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

m1b. Is site 1 in public (co-located) space or in private space? 

Private Space 

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m1d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection Report 

for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Certificate of Occupancy and Fire Inspection. Provide a copy of a current and non-expired 

certificate of occupancy (if outside NYC or in private space in NYC). For schools that are not in 

district space (NYC co-locations), provide a copy of a current and non-expired certificate of 

occupancy, and a copy of the current annual fire inspection results, which should be dated on 

or after July 1, 2021. 

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

2350 5th Ave - Certificate of Occupancy GCCS.pdf 

Filename: 2350 5th Ave - Certificate of Occupancy GCCS.pdf Size: 499.2 kB 

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report 

GCCS Fire Inspection FY21 2350 5 ave M 21.pdf 

Filename: GCCS Fire Inspection FY21 2350 5 ave M 21.pdf Size: 197.4 kB 

School Site 2 
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m2b. Is site 2 in public (co-located) space or in private space? 

Private Space 

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m2d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection Report 

for school site 2 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Certificate of Occupancy and Fire Inspection. Provide a copy of a current and non-expired 

certificate of occupancy (if outside NYC or in private space in NYC). For schools that are not in 

district space (NYC co-locations), provide a copy of a current and non-expired certificate of 

occupancy, and a copy of the current annual fire inspection results, which should be dated on 

or after July 1, 2021. 

Site 2 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

LOV 5854 - 219 West 146 Street - Application.pdf 

Filename: LOV 5854 - 219 West 146 Street - Application.pdf Size: 506.0 kB 

Site 2 Fire Inspection Report 

GCCS Middle School Fire alarm system supporting info.pdf 

Filename: GCCS Middle School Fire alarm system supporting info.pdf Size: 14.1 MB 

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2020-2021 SCHOOL YEAR 

n1. Were there any revisions to the school’s charter during the 2020-2021 school year? (Please 

include approved or pending material and non-material charter revisions). 

Yes 
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1 

n2. Summary of Charter Revisions 

Category (Select 
Best Description) 

Change in 

complaint policy 

Specific Revision Date Approved by Date Approved by 

(150 word limit) BOT (if applicable) Authorizer (if 
applicable) 

Non Material June 16 2021 Pending Updates 

Change in mission, Non Material 2 vision or June 16 2021 Pending Updates philosophy 

Non-material 
3 Other updates to key June 16 2021 Pending 

design elements 

Change in Increased lottery 4 admissions/enrollm June 16 2021 Pending weight for SWD ent policy 

5 

More revisions to add? 

No 

o. Has your school's Board of Trustee's approved a budget for the 2020-2021 FY? 

Yes 

ATTESTATIONS 

10 / 40 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	

p. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report. 

Name Bill Holmes 

Position Chief Operating Officer 

Phone/Extension 646-360-2363 

Email bholmes@globalcommunitycs.org 

p. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board President) 

below attest that our school has reviewed, understands and will comply with the employee 

clearance and fingerprint requirements as outlined in Entry 10 and found in the NYSED CSO 

Fingerprint Clearance Oct 2019 Memo. Click YES to agree. 

Responses Selected: 

Yes 

q. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board President) 

below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and accurate and that this 

charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, and with all pertinent Federal, 

State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We understand that if any information in any part 

of this report is found to have been deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds 

for the revocation of our charter. Click YES to agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the 

stylus on your mobile device to sign your name). 

Responses Selected: 

Yes 

Signature, Head of Charter School 

11 / 40 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees 

Date 

Aug 3 2021 

Thank you. 

Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals 

Completed Oct 13 2021 

Instructions 
Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE-authorized charter schools 

For the 2020-2021 school year, any academic or 
organization goals that cannot be evaluated due to school 
closure resulting in a lack of data and changes in testing, 
surveying, and other usual practices should be reported as 
“N/A”. Deadline is November 1, 2021. 
PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is
marked optional for administrative purposes only. 
Entry 3 Progress Toward Goals 
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PROGRESS TOWARD CHARTER GOALS 

Board of Regents-authorized and NYCDOE-authorized charter schools only. 

Complete the tables provided. List each goal and measure as contained in the school’s currently approved 

charter, and indicate whether the school has met or not met the goal. Please provide information for all 
goals no later than November 2, 2021. 

1. ACADEMIC STUDENT PERFORMANCE GOALS 

For the 2020-2021 school year, any academic goals
that cannot be evaluated due to school closure 
resulting in a lack of data and changes in testing, 
surveying, and other usual practices should be 
reported as “N/A”. 

2020-2021 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academic Goal 1 

Academic Student 
Performance Goal 

Each year 80% of 
students who have 

been enrolled on 

BEDS day for at 
least two 

consecutive years 

will perform at or 
above grade level 
(Levels 3&4) on 

Measure Used to 

Evaluate Progress 

Toward Attainment 
of Goal 

NYS ELA, Math and 

Science 

Assessments 

Goal - Met, Not 
Met or Unable to 

Assess 

Unable to Assess 

If not met, 
describe efforts 

the school will take 

to meet goal. If 
unable to assess 

goal, type N/A for 
Not Applicable 

13 / 40 



	 	

	

	 	

	 	
	

	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	

	
	 	 	

	
	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	

	 	
	

	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	

	
	 	 	

	
	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	

	 	
	

	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	

	 	
	

	
	 	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	

	

	 	 	

the NYSED 

assessments. 

Each year the 

percentage of 
students who 

score at or above 

Level 3 on the New 

York State ELA Academic Goal 2 examination will 
exceed that of the 

Community School 
District (CSD) in 

which the school is 

located. 

Each year the 

percentage of 
students who 

score at or above 

Level 3 on the New 

York State math Academic Goal 3 examination will 
exceed that of the 

Community School 
District (CSD) in 

which the school is 

located. 

Each year the 

percentage of 
students who 

score at or above 

Academic Goal 4 Level 3 on the New 

York State ELA 

examination will 
exceed that of the 

state. 

Each year the 

percentage of 
students who 

score at or above 

Academic Goal 5 Level 3 on the New 

York State math 

examination will 

NYS ELA Unable to Assess Assessments 

NYS Math Unable to Assess Assessments 

NYS ELA Unable to Assess Assessments 

NYS Math Unable to Assess Assessments 

14 / 40 



	 	

	 	 	

	 	

	 	
	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	
	

	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	
	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	
	

	 	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	

	 	
	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	
	

	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	

	 	
	

	
	 	

	 	

exceed that of the 

state. 

Each year the 

percentage of 
English language 

learners at the 

school who score 

at or above Level 3 Academic Goal 6 
on the New York 

State ELA 

examination will 
exceed that of the 

CSD. 

Each year the 

percentage of 
students with 

disabilities at the 

school who score 

Academic Goal 7 at or above Level 3 

on the New York 

State ELA 

examination will 
exceed that of the 

CSD. 

Each year the 

percentage of 
economically 

disadvantaged 

students at the 

school who score Academic Goal 8 at or above Level 3 

on the New York 

State ELA 

examination will 
exceed that of the 

CSD. 

NYS ELA Unable to Assess Assessments - ELL 

NYS ELA 

Assessments - Unable to Assess 

SWD 

NYS ELA Unable to Assess Assessments - ED 

Each year the 

percentage of 
English language 

learners at the 

school who score 

15 / 40 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	
	

	 	 	

	
	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	
	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	
	

	 	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	

	 	
	

	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	

	
	 	

	

	 	

	 	
	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	

Academic Goal 9 at or above Level 3 NYS Math Unable to Assess 

on the New York 

State math 

examination will 
exceed that of the 

CSD. 

Each year the 

percentage of 
students with 

disabilities at the 

school who score 

Academic Goal 10 at or above Level 3 

on the New York 

State math 

examination will 
exceed that of the 

CSD. 

Assessments - ELL 

NYS Math 

Assessments - Unable to Assess 

SWD 

2. Do have more academic goals to add? 

Yes 

2020-2021 Progress Toward Attainment of Academic Goals 

Academic Goal 11 

Academic Student 
Performance Goal 

Each year the 

percentage of 
economically 

disadvantaged 

students at the 

school who score 

at or above Level 3 

Measure Used to 

Evaluate Progress 

Toward Attainment 
of Goal 

NYS Math 

Assessments - ED 

Goal - Met, Not 
Met or Unable to 

Assess 

Unable to Assess 

2019-2020 

progress toward 

attainment of goal 
Met/Not 
Met/Unable to 

Assess During Due 

to Closure 

16 / 40 



	 	

	 	 	
	

	
	 	 	

	 	

	 	
	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	
	

	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	
	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	
	

	 	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	

	 	
	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	
	

	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	

	 	
	

on the New York 

State math 

examination will 
exceed that of the 

CSD. 

Each year the 

percentage of 
English language 

learners at the 

school who score 

Academic Goal 12 at or above Level 3 

on the New York 

State ELA 

examination will 
exceed that of the 

state. 

Each year the 

percentage of 
students with 

disabilities at the 

school who score 

Academic Goal 13 at or above Level 3 

on the New York 

State ELA 

examination will 
exceed that of the 

state. 

Each year the 

percentage of 
economically 

disadvantaged 

students at the 

school who score 
Academic Goal 14 at or above Level 3 

on the New York 

State ELA 

examination will 
exceed that of the 

state. 

NYS ELA Unable to Assess Assessments - ELL 

NYS ELA 

Assessments - Unable to Assess 

SWD 

NYS ELA Unable to Assess Assessments - ED 

Each year the 

percentage of 

17 / 40 



	 	

	 	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	
	

	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	
	

	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	
	

	 	 	

	
	 	 	

	 	

	 	
	

	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	 	

	
	

	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

English language 

learners at the 

school who score 
Academic Goal 15 at or above Level 3 

on the New York 

State math 

examination will 
exceed that of the 

state. 

Each year the 

percentage of 
students with 

disabilities at the 

school who score 
Academic Goal 16 at or above Level 3 

on the New York 

State math 

examination will 
exceed that of the 

state. 

Each year the 

percentage of 
economically 

disadvantaged 

students at the 

school who score Academic Goal 17 at or above Level 3 

on the New York 

State math 

examination will 
exceed that of the 

state. 

Academic Goal 18 

Academic Goal 19 

Academic Goal 20 

NYS Math Unable to Assess Assessments - ELL 

NYS Math 
Unable to Assess Assessments -

SWD 

NYS Math Unable to Assess Assessments - ED 

3. Do have more academic goals to add? 

No 

18 / 40 



	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	

	 	

	 	 	
	

	

	
	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	
	 	 	

	 	
	 	

	
	 	

	 	

	

	
	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	 	 	

	
	

	 	

	
	 	

4. ORGANIZATION GOALS 

For the 2020-2021 school year, any organization
goals that cannot be evaluated due to school closure
resulting in a lack of data and changes in testing, 
surveying, and other usual practices should be 
reported as “N/A”. 

2020-2021 Progress Toward Attainment of Organization Goals 

Org Goal 1 

Org Goal 2 

Org Goal 3 

Organizational 
Goal 

GCCS will have an 

annual average 

student 
attendance of 
95%. 

Each year at least 
80% of families will 
complete the NYC 

DOE Annual Parent 
Survey. 

Parents will 
express 

satisfaction with 

the school’s 

program, based on 

the NYC DOE 

School Survey. The 

school will have a 

percentage of 
parent satisfaction 

that meets or 

Measure Used to 

Evaluate Progress 

ATS Records 

indicate 93% in 

2020-21. 

NYCDOE School 
Survey - Pending 

Results 

NYCDOE School 
Survey - Pending 

Results 

Goal - Met, Not If not met, 
Met, or Unable to describe efforts 

Assess the school will take 

to meet goal. If 
unable to assess 

goal, type N/A for 
Not Applicable 

Not Met 

19 / 40 



	 	

	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	

exceeds citywide 

averages. 

Org Goal 4 

Org Goal 5 

Org Goal 6 

Org Goal 7 

Org Goal 8 

Org Goal 9 

Org Goal 10 

Org Goal 11 

Org Goal 12 

Org Goal 13 

Org Goal 14 

Org Goal 15 

Org Goal 16 

Org Goal 17 

Org Goal 18 

Org Goal 19 

Org Goal 20 

5. Do have more organizational goals to add? 

No 

6. FINANCIAL GOALS 

20 / 40 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	 	 	
	 	

	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	

	 	
	 	

	 	
	

	 	
	 	
	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

2020-2021 Progress Toward Attainment of Financial Goals 

Measure Used to Goal - Met, Not If not met, 
Evaluate Progress Met, or Partially describe efforts 

Met the school will take 

to meet goal. 

Review of monthly 

financials and 

ongoing review of Met the budget with 

our finance 

committee. 

Financial Goals 

The school will 
operate each year 
within the budget Financial Goal 1 established 

annually by the 

Board of Trustees. 

Financial Goal 2 

Financial Goal 3 

Financial Goal 4 

Financial Goal 5 

7. Do have more financial goals to add? 

No 

Thank you. 

Entry 4 - Audited Financial Statements 

Completed Oct 29 2021 

Required of ALL Charter Schools 

ALL SUNY-authorized charter schools must upload the financial statements in .pdf format into the 
SUNY Epicenter system no later than November 1, 2021. SUNY CSI will forward to NYSED CSO. 

ALL Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized charter schools must upload final, audited 
financial statements to the Annual Report Portal no later than November 1, 2021. Upload the 
independent auditor’s report, any advisory and/or management letter, and the internal controls report as 
one submission, combined into a .PDF file, ensuring that security features such as password protection 
are turned off. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes 
only. 
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Combined FY22 Financials 

Filename: Combined FY22 Financials.pdf Size: 493.5 kB 

Entry 4b – Audited Financial Report Template (BOR/NYC/BOE) 
Completed Dec 20 2021 

Instructions - Regents-Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

Regents-authorized schools must download and complete the Excel spreadsheet entitled “Audited 
Financial Report Template” from the online portal or the website at 2020-2021 Charter School Annual 
Report webpage. Upload the completed file in Excel format. Due November 1, 2021. 

Education Corporations with more than one school should complete the Excel spreadsheet for 
the Education Corporation as a whole, not for the individual schools. Please submit the same 
Excel spreadsheet for each of the schools. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes 
only. 

Global Community CS_BEDS-310500861012_2020-21 

Filename: Global Community CS BEDS 31050086 e4SyAx2.xlsx Size: 467.8 kB 

Entry 4c – Additional Financial Documents 

Completed Oct 29 2021 

Instructions - Regents, NYCDOE and Buffalo BOE authorized schools must upload financial 
documents in this section by November 1, 2021. The items listed below should be uploaded, with an 
explanation if not applicable or available. For example, a “federal Single Audit was not required because 
the school did not expend federal funds of more than the $750,000 Threshold.” 

1. Advisory and/or Management letter 
2. Federal Single Audit 
3. CSP Agreed-Upon Procedure Report 
4. Evidence of Required Escrow Account for each school[1] 
5. Corrective Action Plan for Audit Findings and Management Letter Recommendations 

[1] Note: For BOR schools chartered or renewed after the 2017-2018 school year, the escrow account per 
school is $100,000. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes 
only. 

View PDF Statement_2021-06-30 (7) 

Filename: View PDF Statement 2021 06 30 7.pdf Size: 935.6 kB 

GLOBAL COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL - 06 

Filename: GLOBAL COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 0 nDpAVDL.pdf Size: 352.7 kB 
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Entry 5 – Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Budget 
Completed Oct 13 2021 

Instructions - Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE authorized charter schools should upload a 
copy of the school’s FY21 Budget using the 2021-2022 Projected Annual Budget template in the portal or 
from the Annual Report website by November 1, 2021. 

The assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is self-
explanatory. Where applicable, reference the page number or section in the application narrative that 
indicates the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would reference the applicable 
page number in Section I, C of the application narrative. 

Instructions - SUNY authorized charter schools should download the 2021-2022 Budget and 
Quarterly Report Template on the SUNY website or Epicenter and upload the completed template into the 
portal by November 1, 2021. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes 
only. 

GCCS_2021-2022ARBudget 

Filename: GCCS 2021 2022ARBudget.xlsx Size: 37.5 kB 

Entry 6 – Board of Trustees Disclosure of Financial Interest 
Form 

Completed Oct 13 2021 

Required of ALL Charter Schools by August 2 

Each member of the charter school’s Board of Trustees who served on a charter school education 
corporation governing one or more charter schools for any period during the 2020-2021 school year must 
complete a signed: 

Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Schools: Disclosure of Financial Interest Form 
SUNY- Authorized Charter Schools: SUNY Trustee Financial Disclosure Form 

All completed forms must be collected and uploaded in .PDF format for each individual member. If a 
trustee is not able or available to complete the form by the deadline, the education corporation 
is responsible for doing so on behalf of the trustee. (Forms completed from past years will not be 
accepted). 

Trustees serving on an education corporation that governs more than one school are not required to 
complete a separate disclosure for each school governed by the education corporation. In the Disclosure 
of Financial Interest Form, trustees must disclose information relevant to any of the schools served by the 
governing education corporation. Note: Docusign is accepted. 

BOT Forms for Upload 

Filename: BOT Forms for Upload.pdf Size: 3.1 MB 

Entry 7 BOT Membership Table 

Completed Oct 13 2021 
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Rob Trustee/ 4 Moser Member 

Nick Trustee/ 5 Pozek Member 

Peter Trustee/ 6 Kauffma Member n 

Ibrahim Trustee/ 7 Ysuf Member 

Priyanka Secretar 8 Gandhi y 

Luke Treasure 9 Copley r 

ability 

Finance 

Educati 
on & 

Account 
ability 

Finance 

Finance 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

4 

1 

2 

2 

1 

1 

06/30/2 

020 

05/06/2 

020 

07/01/2 

019 

07/01/2 

019 

8/25/20 

20 

5/12/20 

21 

02/01/2 10 021 

2/28/20 12 23 

8/19/20 5 or less 20 

6/30/20 8 22 

8/31/20 11 23 

5/31/20 5 or less 24 

1a. Are there more than 9 members of the Board of Trustees? 

Yes 
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15 

12 

2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response relative to 

all trustees. 

a. Total Number of BOT Members on June 30, 2021 

b.Total Number of Members Added During 2020-
2021 

c. Total Number of Members who Departed during 

2020-2021 

d.Total Number of members, as set in Bylaws, 
Resolution or Minutes 

9 

4 

2 

9 

3. Number of Board meetings held during 2020-2021 

4. Number of Board meetings scheduled for 2021-2022 

Thank you. 

Entry 8 Board Meeting Minutes 

Completed Oct 13 2021 

Instructions - Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Schools ONLY 

Schools must upload a complete set of monthly board meeting minutes (July 2020-June 2021), which 
should match the number of meetings held during the 2020-2021 school year, as indicated in the above 
table. The minutes provided must be the final version approved by the school’s Board of Trustees and 
may be uploaded individually or as one single combined file. Board meeting minutes must be submitted 
by August 2, 2021. 
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GCCS 2020-21 MEETING MINUTES 

Filename: GCCS 2020 21 MEETING MINUTES.pdf Size: 1.7 MB 

Entry 9 Enrollment & Retention 

Completed Oct 13 2021 

Instructions for submitting Enrollment and Retention Efforts 
ALL charter schools must complete this section. Describe the good 
faith efforts the charter school has made in 2020-2021 toward meeting 
targets to attract and retain the enrollment of Students with Disabilities 
(SWDs), English Language Learners (ELLs), and students who are 
economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for 
meeting or making progress toward meeting its enrollment and retention 
targets in 2021-2022. 

Entry 9 Enrollment and Retention of Special
Populations 

Instructions for Reporting Enrollment and Retention Strategies 

Describe the efforts the charter school has made in 2020-2021 toward 

meeting targets to attract and retain enrollment of students with disabilities, 
English language learners, and students who are economically 

disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or 
making progress toward meeting its enrollment and retention targets in 

2021-2022. 

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Recruitment Efforts in 

2020-2021 

Describe Recruitment Plans in 

2021-2022 

-GCCS markets to families in 

public housing near the school. 
As there are several public 

housing complexes in a close 

radius to GCCS, this is the 

school’s primary method for 
recruiting ED students. 

In 2020-21, our enrollment of ED 

students exceeded that of our 
district by 5 percentage points. 
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Economically Disadvantaged 

English Language Learners 

Students with Disabilities 

-The school’s marketing 

materials describe the supports 

offered by the school, including 

after-school programming. 
-Staff from GCCS visit daycares 

and prekindergarten providers 

within close proximity to the 

school. 

-The school’s recruitment 
presentation team includes the 

bilingual Family Coordinator. 
-GCCS recruits at area preschools 

with high concentrations of 
bilingual students. 
-The application is printed in 

English & Spanish. 
-Bilingual staff members deliver 
school tours and presentations. 
-Marketing materials are 

available in different languages. 
-Marketing materials describe the 

school’s supports for ELL. 

The GCCS recruitment team 

visits preschools that serve SWD. 
In particular, GCCS focuses on 

recruitment at a nearby early life 

center that caters to students 

with disabilities. Our marketing 

materials describe the school’s 

ICT model and support for SWD. 
In the 2018-19 recruitment cycle, 
GCCS revised our marketing 

materials to ensure that all print 
and digital marketing for GCCS 

reflects diverse images of 
students, including SWD. 
We continue to expand outreach 

to additional daycare and pre-
kindergarten providers who serve 

students with special needs. In 

2019, we received approval for a 

change to our lottery policy that 
provides students with IEPs with 

We will continue implementing 

the strategies listed to the left as 

they have proven to be effective 

in reaching families with ED 

students. 

In 2020-21, our enrollment of 
ELLs exceeded that of our 
district. Our well-developed 

recruitment approach includes an 

emphasis on translated materials 

as well as in-person translation 

for open houses and recruitment 
events. This approach continues 

to be successful in reaching 

families with ELLs. 

In 2020-21, GCCS did not meet 
our district in the enrollment of 
SWD. In response, we increased 

our lottery weight for students 

who indicate that they have an 

IEP. In addition, we are 

introducing expanded marketing, 
including digital ads, to ensure 

that more potential SWD apply to 

be included in the lottery. We 

expect this measure to help 

ensure that more students from 

our community in this subgroup 

have a better chance to enroll at 
GCCS. To ensure that the 

enrollment of SWD continues to 

approach or meet the district, 
GCCS will continue to expand 

outreach to additional daycare 

and pre-kindergarten providers 
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who serve students with special a greater chance of gaining a 

needs. seat in our school. 

Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Economically Disadvantaged 

Describe Retention Efforts in 

2020-2021 

The school schedule offers 

intervention periods. There is 

extended-day, after-school, and 

summer programming. The 

school offers workshops for 
parents on topics such as how to 

support student literacy at home. 
GCCS provides professional 
development for all teachers to 

support the academic, social, 
and emotional needs of students. 
We partner with Operation 

Backpack to provide free 

backpacks filled with school 
supplies to all students. During 

the COVID-19 pandemic, we 

supported our families in more 

ways than just through provision 

of in-school instruction. We 

worked with Red Rabbit, our 
school food partner, to drop off 
meals to strategic locations 

throughout the neighborhood, 
and made regular deliveries of 
basic school supplies, 
Chromebooks, and WiFi hotspots 

to ensure their ability to connect 
with their virtual classrooms. 

Describe Retention Plans in 

2021-2022 

Going forward, we will continue 

to implement the strategies 

listed to the left to ensure strong 

retention rates for ED students. 
In addition, as we return to in-
person learning in 2021-22, we 

are focused on supporting 

students'	 socially-emotionally 

and academically and mitigating 

learning loss. In the last trimester 
of the 2020-21 school year and 

the summer planning period of 
2021, our team focused on 

building a COVID Recovery Plan 

to guide our return to fully in-
person instruction in the 2021-22 

school year. The components of 
this plan include: An emphasis on 

diagnosis, assessment, and 

reteaching; Time for social and 

emotional learning to ensure no 

barriers to academics; and 

Enrichment opportunities for 
students ready for more 

advanced work. 

In 2018-19, GCCS expanded the 

staff capacity to serve ELLs with 

the introduction of an ENL 

teacher to assist teachers with 

inclusive instructional strategies 

and support students through 
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English Language Learners 

Students with Disabilities 

ENL periods (which continued 

during remote learning) and 

push-in services. We now have 

two ENL teachers in the 2021-22 

school year, overseen by the 

special population coordinator. 
Schoolwide, we prioritize hiring 

bilingual teachers to further 
support ELLs. GCCS also offers 

Spanish as a “special” for all 
grade levels. To the best of our 
ability, we make all of our 
communications to families 

available in Spanish as well as 

English, and our communication 

platform allows families to 

translate all messages into their 
native language. 

GCCS provides an ICT model, 
with at least one SPED-certified 

teacher in each ICT classroom. 
GCCS’ staff includes a special 
populations coordinator, reading 

and math specialists, and three 

counselors. In addition, agency-
provided staff include two full-
time speech and language 

therapists, one full-time 

occupational therapist, and one 

part-time physical therapist. 
GCCS provides professional 
development for all teachers to 

support the academic, social, 
and emotional needs of students. 
Our student support services 

staff, in particular our special 
populations coordinator, 
continues to build relationships 

with our SWD families and the 

local infrastructure that supports 

getting students the services 

they need. 

We will continue to implement 
the strategies listed to the left to 

ensure strong retention rates for 
ELLs. As stated above, we are 

focused on whole-school support 
for students returning to in-
person learning in 2021-22. We 

anticipate that this will contribute 

to continued retention for ELLs at 
GCCS. 

As with ED and ELLs retention 

strategies, we will continue to 

implement the strategies listed 

to the left. In addition, our whole-
school strategies for supporting 

students returning to in-person 

learning in 2021-22 will be used 

to ensure retention of SWD. 

Entry 10 – Teacher and Administrator Attrition 
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Completed Oct 13 2021 

Form for "Entry 10 – Teacher and Administrator
Attrition" Revised to Employee Fingerprint
Requirements Attestation 

A. TEACH System – Employee Clearance 

Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees[1] receive clearance through the NYSED Office 

of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) prior to employment. This includes 

paraprofessionals and other school personnel that are provided or assigned by the district of 

location, or related/contracted service providers. After an employee has been cleared, schools are 

required to maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all students, 
charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of individuals who have been 

denied clearance. Once the employees have been terminated, the school must terminate the request for 
clearance in the TEACH system. 

In the Annual Report, charter schools are asked to confirm that all employees have been cleared through 

the NYSED TEACH system; and, if denied clearance, confirm that the individual or employee has been 

removed from the TEACH system, and is not employed by the school. 

[1] Employees that must be cleared include, but are not limited to, teachers, administrative staff, janitors, 
security personnel and cafeteria workers, and other staff who are present when children are in the school 
building. This includes paraprofessionals and other school personnel that are provided or 

assigned by the district of location, as well as related/contracted service providers. See NYSED 

memorandum dated October 1, 2019 at 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/aboutcharterschools/lawsandregs/EmployeeFingerprintOct19.pdf or visit the 

NYSED website at: http://www.highered.nysed.gov/tsei/ospra/fingerprintingcharts.html for more information 

regarding who must be fingerprinted. Also see, 8 NYCRR §87.2. 
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B. Emergency Conditional Clearances 

Charter schools are strongly discouraged from using the emergency conditional clearance provisions for 
prospective employees. This is because the school must simultaneously request clearance through NYSED 

TEACH, and the school’s emergency conditional clearance of the employee terminates automatically once 

the school receives notification from NYSED regarding the clearance request. Status notification is provided 

for all prospective employees through the NYSED TEACH portal within 48 hours after the clearance request 
is submitted. Therefore, at most, a school’s emergency conditional clearance will be valid for only 48 hours 

after approval by the board. 

Schools are not permitted to renew or in any way re-establish a prospective employee’s emergency 

conditional clearance after status notification is sent by NYSED through the TEACH portal. 

Schools are asked to attest that they have reviewed and understand these requirements. More information 

can be found in the memo at 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/aboutcharterschools/lawsandregs/EmployeeFingerprintOct19.pdf. 

Attestation 

Responses Selected: 

I hereby attest that the school has reviewed, understands, and will comply with these requirements. 

Entry 11 Percent of Uncertified Teachers 

Completed Oct 13 2021 

Instructions 

Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

The table below reflects the information collected through the online portal for compliance with New 
York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff qualifications. Uncertified teachers are those 
not certified pursuant to the State Certification Requirements established by the NYSED Commissioner of 
Education. 

Enter the relevant full-time equivalent (FTE) count of teachers in each column. For example, a school 
with 20 full-time teachers and 5 half-time teachers would have an FTE count of 22.5. 

Entry 11 Uncertified Teachers 

School Name: 
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Instructions for Reporting Percent of Uncertified
Teachers 

Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools 

The table below reflects the information collected through the online portal for compliance 

with New York State Education Law 2854(3)(a-1) for teaching staff qualifications. Uncertified 

teachers are those not certified pursuant to the State Certification Requirements established 

by the NYSED Commissioner of Education. Enter the relevant full-time equivalent (FTE) count 

of teachers in each column. For example, a school with 20 full-time teachers and 5 half-time 

teachers would have an FTE count of 22.5. 

If more than one line applies to a teacher, please include in only one FTE uncertified category. Please do 

not include paraprofessionals, such as teacher aides. 

CATEGORY A. 30% OR 5 UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS WHICHEVER IS LESS 

FTE Count 

5 

5.0 

i. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least 
three years of elementary, middle or secondary 

classroom teaching experience (as of June 30, 
2021) 

ii. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are 

tenured or tenure track college faculty (as of June 

30, 2021) 

iii. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years 

of Teach for America experience (as of June 30, 
2021) 

iv. FTE count of uncertified teachers with 

exceptional business, professional, artistic, 
athletic, or military experience (as June 30, 2021) 

Total Category A: 5 or 30% whichever is less 
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CATEGORY B. PLUS FIVE UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS IN MATHEMATICS, SCIENCE, COMPUTER 

SCIENCE, TECHNOLOGY OR CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION. 

FTE Count 

i. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least 
three years of elementary, middle or secondary 

classroom teaching experience (as of June 30, 
2021) 

ii. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are 

tenured or tenure track college faculty (as of June 

30, 2021) 

iii. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years 

of Teach for America experience (as of June 30, 
2021) 

iv. FTE count of uncertified teachers with 

exceptional business, professional, artistic, 
athletic, or military experience (as June 30, 2021) 

Total Category B: not to exceed 5 0 
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CATEGORY C: PLUS 5 ADDITIONAL UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS 

i. FTE count of uncertified teacher with at least 
three years of elementary, middle or secondary 

classroom teaching experience (as of June 30, 
2021) 

ii. FTE count of uncertified teachers who are 

tenured or tenure track college faculty (as of June 

30, 2021) 

iii. FTE count of uncertified teachers with two years 

of Teach for America experience (as of June 30, 
2021) 

iv. FTE count of uncertified teachers with 

exceptional business, professional, artistic, 
athletic, or military experience (as June 30, 2021) 

Total Category C: not to exceed 5 

FTE Count 

3 

3.0 

CATEGORY D: TOTAL FTE COUNT OF UNCATEGORIZED, UNCERTIFIED TEACHERS 

(Include teachers who do not fit in one of these categories or if did fit would exceed the numerical limits for 
that category) 

FTE Count 

Total Category D 1 

CATEGORY E: TOTAL FTE COUNT OF CERTIFIED TEACHERS 

FTE Count 

Total Category E 29 
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CATEGORY F: TOTAL FTE COUNT OF ALL TEACHERS 

Please do not include paraprofessionals, such as teacher aides. 

FTE Count 

Total Category F 38 

Thank you. 

Entry 12 Organization Chart 
Completed Oct 13 2021 

Instructions 

Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

Upload the 2020-2021 Organization Chart. The organization chart should include position titles and 
reporting relationships. Employee names should not appear on the chart 

FY21 Org Chart 

Filename: FY21 Org Chart.pdf Size: 627.3 kB 

Entry 13 School Calendar 

Completed Oct 13 2021 

Instructions for submitting School Calendar 

Required of ALL Charter Schools 

Given these uncertain and changing times, charter schools may or may not have a school calendar ready 
to upload by the submission deadline this year of August 2, 2021. If the charter school has a tentative 

calendar based on available information and guidance at the time, please submit with the August 2nd 

submission. Charter schools will be able to upload an updated school calendar into the portal at any time 
but no later than September 15, 2021. 

School calendars must meet the minimum instructional requirements as required of other public schools 
“… unless the school’s charter requires more instructional time than is required under the regulations.” 

Board of Regents-authorized charter schools are required to submit school calendars that clearly indicate 
the start and end date of the instructional year AND the number of instructional hours and/or 
instructional days for each month. 

PLEASE NOTE: This is a required task, and it is marked optional for administrative purposes 
only. 
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School Year Calendar 2021-22 APPROVED 

Filename: School Year Calendar 2021 22 APPROVED.pdf Size: 622.3 kB 

School Year Calendar 2021-22 APPROVED 

Filename: School Year Calendar 2021 22 APPROV QK5e1wn.pdf Size: 527.2 kB 

Entry 14 Links to Critical Documents on School Website 

Completed Oct 13 2021 

Instructions 

Required of Regents, NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter Schools ONLY 

By law, each charter school is required to maintain certain notices and policies listed on its website. 
Please insert the link from the school’s website for each of the items: 

1. Most recently filed Annual Report (i.e., 2019-2020 Annual Report); 
2. Most recent board meeting notice, documents to be discussed at the meeting (if any), and 

webcast of Board meetings (if held virtually per Governor’s Executive Order); 
3. Link to New York State School Report Card; 
4. Lottery Notice announcing date of lottery; 
5. Authorizer-approved DASA Policy; 
6. District-wide safety plan and Authorizer-approved Discipline Policy (as per August 29, 

2019 Emergency Response Plan Memo); 
7. Authorizer-approved FOIL Policy; and 
8. Subject matter list of FOIL records. 
9. Link to School Reopening Plan 

Form for Entry 14 Links to Critical Documents on
School Website 

School Name: Global Community Charter School 
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Required of ALL Charter Schools noting that SUNY-authorized charter schools are not required 

to submit item 5: Authorizer-approved DASA policy 

By law, each charter school is required to maintain certain notices and policies listed on its 

website. Please insert the link from the school’s website for each of the items: 

Link to Documents 

1. Most Recent Annual Report (i.e., 2019-20) https://www.globalcommunitycs.org/auditsandannu 

alreports 

2. Most recent board meeting notice, documents to 

be discussed at the meeting (if any) 
https://www.globalcommunitycs.org/calendar/2021/ 
7/21/gccs-board-meeting 

2a. Webcast of Board Meetings (per Governor's 

Executive Order) 
https://www.globalcommunitycs.org/auditsandannu 

alreports 

3. Link to NYS School Report Card 
https://www.globalcommunitycs.org/auditsandannu 

alreports 

4. Lottery Notice announcing date of lottery https://www.globalcommunitycs.org/apply 

5. Authorizer-approved DASA Policy (For Regents, 
NYCDOE, and Buffalo BOE Authorized Charter 
Schools ONLY); 

https://www.globalcommunitycs.org/for-families 

6. District-wide Safety Plan https://www.globalcommunitycs.org/for-families 

6a. Authorizer-Approved Discipline Policy (as per 
August 29, 2019 Emergency Response Plan Memo) https://www.globalcommunitycs.org/for-families 

7. Authorizer-Approved FOIL Policy https://www.globalcommunitycs.org/for-families 

8. Subject matter list of FOIL records https://www.globalcommunitycs.org/for-families 

Thank you. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND 
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Board of Trustees 
Global Community Charter School 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of Global Community Charter School which comprise the 
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021 and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, 
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and 
have issued our report thereon dated October 26, 2021. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

Management of Global Community Charter School is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered 
Global Community Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Global Community Charter 
School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Global Community 
Charter School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Charter School’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.  
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to 
be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.   
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Global Community Charter School’s financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial 
statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, 
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance 
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the Organization’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable 
for any other purpose. 

Rochester, New York 
October 26, 2021 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; 
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; 

AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
 IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

Board of Trustees 
Global Community Charter School 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Global Community Charter School’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on Global Community 
Charter School’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. Global Community Charter School’s 
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs.   

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its 
federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Global Community Charter School’s major 
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.   

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations 
(CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that 
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence about Global Community Charter School’s compliance with those requirements and performing such 
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.  
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.  
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on Global Community Charter School’s compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, Global Community Charter School complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal programs for the year 
ended June 30, 2021. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of Global Community Charter School is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing 
our audit of compliance, we considered Global Community Charter School’s internal control over compliance with 
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance 
for the major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Global Community Charter School’s 
internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect 
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material 
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we 
consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing on internal 
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
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Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 

We have audited the financial statements of Global Community Charter School as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2021, and have issued our report thereon dated October 26, 2021, which contained an unmodified opinion on those 
financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis 
as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling 
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or 
to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards 
is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.   

Rochester, New York 
October 26, 2021 
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GLOBAL COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Federal 
AL 

Pass-through 
Grantor's 

Total 
Federal 

  U.S. Department of Education:
    Passed through NYS Department of Education

  Title I - Grants to Local Educational Agencies 
  Title I - Grants to Local Educational Agencies 

Total Title I 
  Title IIA - Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants 
  Title IIIA - English Learning Acquisition State Grants 
  Title IIIA - English Learning Acquisition State Grants 

Total Title IIIA 
  Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief
      (ESSER) Fund 

Number 

84.010 
84.010 
84.010 
84.367 
84.365 
84.365 
84.365 

84.425D 

Number 

0021-21-4155 
0021-20-4155 

0147-21-4155 
0293-21-0085 
0293-20-0085 

5890-21-4155 

Expenditures

182,228
14,562 

196,790
57,200
15,622
2,153 

17,775

125,566 

TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 397,331

  U.S. Department of Agriculture:
    Passed through NYS Department of Education 

Child Nutrition Cluster
 Summer Food Service Program 
 National School Lunch Program 

Total Child Nutrition Cluster 
TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 

10.559 
10.555 

310500861012 
310500861012 

384,680
35,395 

420,075 
420,075 

TOTAL ALL PROGRAMS $    817,406 

NOTE A:  BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying schedule of federal awards (the “schedule”) includes the federal grant activity Global 
Community Charter School and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule 
is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used 
in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. 
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GLOBAL COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

NOTE B:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are 
recognized following, as applicable, the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations 
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 

Global Community Charter School has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed 
under the Uniform Guidance.  

No amounts were passed through to subrecipients. 
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GLOBAL COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

• Material weakness (es) identified? 

•  Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are 
not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements
  noted? 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 

• Material weakness (es) identified? 

•  Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are 
not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance 
  for major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
  to be reported in accordance with section
  2 CFR 200.516(a)? 

Identification of major program: 

AL Number:

10.559 
10.555 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
  type A and type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

Unmodified 

yes x no 

yes x none reported 

yes x no 

yes x no 

yes x none reported 

Unmodified 

yes x no 

   Name of Federal Program or Cluster: 

Child Nutrition Cluster 
Summer Food Service Program 
National School Lunch Program 

$750,000 

yes x no 
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GLOBAL COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, Cont’d 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

FINDING – FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 

None. 

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS – MAJOR FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM 

None.  

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

None. 
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October 26, 2021 

Finance Committee 
Global Community Charter School 

We have audited the financial statements of Global Community Charter School as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated October 26, 2021. Professional standards require that we 
advise you of the following matters relating to our audit. 

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit 

As communicated in our engagement letter dated June 9, 2021 our responsibility, as described by professional 
standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared by 
management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve 
you or management of its respective responsibilities. 

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, 
rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of 
financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we 
considered the internal control of Global Community Charter School solely for the purpose of determining our 
audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control. 

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our professional 
judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not 
required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to communicate to you. 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit  

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to you. 
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Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm have complied with all relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence. Safeguards in place to eliminate or reduce threats to independence to an 
acceptable level include a skilled, knowledgeable and experienced Chief Operating Officer who reviews draft 
financial statements and the schedule of federal expenditures prior to issuance and accepts responsibility for 
them. 

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity’s Significant Accounting Practices 

Significant Accounting Policies 
Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the significant 
accounting policies adopted by Global Community Charter School is included in Note A to the financial 
statements. There have been no initial selection of accounting policies and no changes in significant accounting 
policies or their application during the year ended June 30, 2021.  No matters have come to  our attention that  
would require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to account for significant 
unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for 
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 

Significant Accounting Estimates 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience about past 
and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive 
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting 
them may differ markedly from management’s current judgments. 

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are the collectability of grants receivable, 
as well as the allocation of costs for the statement of functional expenses. We evaluated the key factors and 
assumptions used to develop these estimates and determined that they are reasonable in relation to the basic 
financial statements taken as a whole. 

Financial Statement Disclosures 
Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive because of their 
significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting Global Community Charter 
School’s financial statements relate to the school facility, leases and commitments, the COVID-19 pandemic and 
related Paycheck Protection Program loan, revenue and support concentrations, and subsequent events, which are 
referred to in the notes of the financial statements. 

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of the audit. 

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements 

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely 
misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate them to the 
appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also communicate the effect of 
uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, account balances or 
disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole.  No such misstatements were identified during our audit. 
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Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, whether or 
not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, which could be 
significant to Global Community Charter School’s financial statements or the auditor’s report. No such 
disagreements arose during the course of the audit. 

Representations Requested from Management 

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the management 
representation letter.  

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters. 
Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other accountants regarding 
auditing and accounting matters. 

Other Significant Matters, Findings or Issues 

In the normal course of our professional association with Global Community Charter School, we generally discuss 
a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, business conditions 
affecting the entity, and business plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the 
matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as Global Community Charter School’s auditors. 

*     *     *    * * 

Should you desire further information concerning these matters, Jackie Lee or Kurt Button will be happy to meet 
with you at your convenience. 

This letter is intended solely for the use of the Finance Committee, the Board of Trustees, and management Global 
Community Charter School and should not be distributed to any other persons or used for any other purpose. 

Very truly yours, 

MENGEL, METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Board of Trustees 
Global Community Charter School 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Global Community Charter School, which comprise the 
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, 
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

Auditor’s Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.  

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Global Community Charter School as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in its net assets and its cash 
flows for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited Global Community Charter School’s June 30, 2020 financial statements, and we 
expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 26, 2020. 
In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2020 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived. 

Other Report Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 26, 2021 on our 
consideration of Global Community Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering Global Community Charter School’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

Rochester, New York 
October 26, 2021 
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GLOBAL COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2021 
(With Comparative Totals for 2020) 

ASSETS 2021 
June 30, 

2020 

CURRENT ASSETS
  Cash 
  Grants and other receivables 
  Prepaid expenses and other current assets 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

$     1,902,066 $     
454,768 
235,095 

2,591,929 

1,874,843 
410,462
91,990 

2,377,295 

OTHER ASSETS
  Property and equipment, net 
  Cash in escrow 
  Due from Friends of GCCS, Inc. 

Security deposits 

TOTAL ASSETS $    

1,301,037 
100,023 
379,680 
381,250 

2,161,990 
4,753,919 $    

540,396
100,455

-
180,000 
820,851 

3,198,146 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
  Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
  Accrued payroll and benefits 
  Vacation accrual 
  Current portion of capital lease liability 
  Deferred revenue 
  Current portion of Paycheck Protection Program note payable 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

$        203,594 $        
351,321 

43,313 
19,532 
10,000 

-
627,760 

329,942 
553,111

38,469
39,894

-
35,994 

997,410 

OTHER LIABILITIES
   Capital lease liability, net of current portion 
   Paycheck Protection Program note payable, net of current portion 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

20,615 
-

648,375 

40,134
1,118,806 
2,156,350 

NET ASSETS
  Without donor restrictions 
  With donor restrictions 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

3,888,877 
216,667

4,105,544 

1,041,796
 -

1,041,796 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $    4,753,919 $    3,198,146 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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GLOBAL COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
(With Comparative Totals for 2020) 

Year ended June 30, 
2021 2020 

Without 
Donor With Donor 

Restrictions Restrictions Total Total 
Operating revenue and support:
  State and local per pupil operating revenue -
    Regular education $   7,426,754 $                  - $   7,426,754 $   6,925,999
  State and local per pupil operating revenue -
    Special education 1,204,865 - 1,204,865 1,045,702 

State and local per pupil facilities revenue 1,080,000 - 1,080,000 863,379
  Federal grants and contracts 468,835 - 468,835 461,953
  State and city grants and contracts 246,281 - 246,281 245,062
  Food service/Child Nutrition income 433,519 - 433,519 418,796
  Private grants 48,564 325,000 373,564 44,014
  Interest income 3,907 - 3,907 10,891
  Other income 4,519 - 4,519 52,422
  Net assets released from restriction 108,333 (108,333)  -  -

TOTAL OPERATING 
REVENUE AND SUPPORT 11,025,577 216,667 11,242,244 10,068,218 

Expenses:
  Program:
    Regular education 6,565,940 - 6,565,940 5,657,571
    Special education 1,065,210 - 1,065,210 2,454,402
    Pre-K 209,240 - 209,240 208,130
  Management and general 1,408,658 - 1,408,658 1,527,396
  Fundraising 84,248  - 84,248 95,118 

TOTAL EXPENSES 9,333,296  - 9,333,296 9,942,617 

SURPLUS FROM OPERATIONS 1,692,281 216,667 1,908,948 125,601 

Other revenue:
  Forgiveness of Paycheck Protection
    Program note payable 1,154,800  - 1,154,800  -

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 2,847,081 216,667 3,063,748 125,601 

Net assets at beginning of year 1,041,796  - 1,041,796 916,195 

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $  3,888,877 $     216,667 $  4,105,544 $  1,041,796 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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GLOBAL COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
(With Comparative Totals for 2020) 

Personnel services costs:
  Administrative staff personnel
  Instructional personnel
  Non-instructional personnel
Total personnel services costs

No. of 
Positions 

              15 
              54 
                2 
             71 

Regular 
Education 

 $         393,859 
        3,042,670 
              17,797 
        3,454,326 

 $         

Program Services 

Special 
Education Pre-K 

  63,897  $           44,480 
493,622         113,501 
    2,888             2,838 
560,407         160,819 

 $         
 $  

Year ended June 30, 
2021 

Supporting Services 
Management 

and 
Sub-total general Fundraising 

502,236  $         519,737  $  44,954 
3,649,793       79,036  -

              23,523       54,091  -
         4,175,552     652,864               44,954 

 $        

Sub-total 

 564,691 
79,036 
54,091 

      697,818 

 $  

Total 

    1,066,927 
    3,728,829 
         77,614 
    4,873,370 

 $  

2020 

Total 

1,255,609 
         3,855,115 
              76,208 
         5,186,932 

Fringe benefits and payroll taxes
Retirement
Legal service
Accounting / audit services
Other purchased/professional/
  consulting services
Building and Land Rent / Lease
Repairs and maintenance
Insurance
Utilities
Supplies and materials
Equipment / furnishings
Staff development
Marketing / recruitment
Technology
Food service
Student services
Office expense
Depreciation and amortization
Other

 $  

            721,663 
              55,428 

  -
  -

           308,002 
            843,965 
             66,794 
              62,704 

      79,738 
            102,930 
              18,026 
             54,078 

              76,020 
              54,487 
            316,738 
              13,545 
            172,006 
           160,670 
                4,820 

6,565,940  $  

117,077 
    8,992 
           -
           -

  49,968 
136,919 
  10,836 
  10,173 
  12,936 
  16,699 

2,924 
    8,773 
  12,333 
    8,840 
  51,386 
    2,197 
  27,901 

26,066 
       783 

1,065,210  $ 

          12,303 
             -

                   -
                   -

               750 
19,449

                   -
       1,251 

                   -
          10,000 
            1,998 
                   -
            1,000 

                -
         1,670 

                   -
                  -

                   -
-

        209,240  $  

            851,043 
              64,420 

     -
  -

            358,720 
         1,000,333 
              77,630 
              74,128 
              92,674 
            129,629 
              22,948 
              62,851 
              89,353 
              63,327 
            369,794 
              15,742 
            199,907 
            186,736 
                5,603 

7,840,390  $     

    177,749 
      13,454 

 16,849 
      51,025 

      74,922 
    208,824 

  16,035 
      15,483 
      19,356 
      27,074 
        4,793 
      13,127
      18,663 
      13,226 
               -

 3,288 
      41,752
      39,001 
        1,173 

 1,408,658  $  

                9,810 
                742 

 -
 -

                4,134 
              12,023 
                1,720 
                   853 

           1,068 
                1,495 
                   264 
                   724 
                1,029 
                   730 

 -
                   182 
                2,304 
                2,152 
                     64 

84,248  $  

            187,559 
14,196 
16,849 
51,025 

79,056 
            220,847 

17,755 
16,336 
20,424 
28,569 
  5,057 
13,851 
19,692 
13,956 
         -
  3,470 
44,056 
41,153 
  1,237 

1,492,906  $  

    1,038,602 
         78,616 

     16,849 
         51,025 

       437,776 
    1,221,180 
         95,385 
         90,464 
       113,098 

   158,198 
         28,005 
         76,702 
       109,045 

 77,283 
     369,794 

         19,212 
       243,963 
       227,889 
           6,840 

    9,333,296  $  

         1,121,376 
49,652 

                9,156 
              36,375 

            646,310 
  1,156,970 

            132,432 
              88,385 
              96,266 
            263,432 
              74,909 
              92,964 
              72,166 
              52,039 
            409,898 
              52,814 
            226,356 
            164,414 
                9,771 

9,942,617 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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GLOBAL COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
(With Comparative Totals for 2020) 

Year ended June 30, 
2021 2020 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES
  Change in net assets $    3,063,748 $       125,601 
  Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
   provided from operating activities:
      Depreciation and amortization 227,889         164,414 
      Forgiveness of Paycheck Protection Program note payable (1,154,800)                    -
      Changes in certain assets and liabilities affecting operations:
        Grants and other receivables (44,306) (235,157)
        Prepaid expenses and other current assets (143,105)         (88,130)
        Security deposits (201,250)                    -
        Accounts payable and accrued expenses (126,348)           44,312 
        Accrued payroll and benefits (201,790)         254,537 
        Vacation accrual 4,844         (13,476)
        Deferred revenue 10,000         (26,546) 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,434,882 225,555 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES
  Increase in amount due from Friends of GCCS, Inc. (379,680)                    -
  Purchases of property and equipment (988,530)       (345,000) 

NET CASH USED FOR 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1,368,210) (345,000) 

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES
  Proceeds from Paycheck Protection Program loan -      1,154,800 
  Payments on capital leases (39,881)         (37,002) 

NET CASH (USED FOR) PROVIDED FROM 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (39,881) 1,117,798 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH             26,791       998,353 

Cash and restricted cash at beginning of year 1,975,298         976,945 

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH AT END OF YEAR $   2,002,089 $   1,975,298 
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GLOBAL COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS, Cont’d 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 
(With Comparative Totals for 2020) 

Year ended June 30, 
2021 2020 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
  Cash paid for interest $      4,940 $          8,619 

  Reconciliation of cash reported within the statement of financial position
    that sum to the total amounts shown in the statement of cash flows:
      Cash $    1,902,066 $    1,874,843 
      Cash in escrow 100,023 100,455 

Total cash and restricted cash shown in the statement of cash flows $   2,002,089 $   1,975,298 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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GLOBAL COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

JUNE 30, 2021 
(With Comparative Totals for 2020) 

NOTE A:  THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Charter School 
Global Community Charter School (the “Charter School”) is an educational corporation that operates as a 
charter school in New York, New York. On September 13, 2011, the Board of Regents of the University of the 
State of New York granted the Charter School a provisional charter valid for a term of five years and renewable 
upon expiration. The Charter received its second renewal on April 9, 2019 for a term of three years through 
June 30, 2022. The Charter School also received approval from the New York City Department of Education 
to operate a Pre-K program beginning in Fall 2019 through June 2021. The Charter School is currently in the 
process of renewing the Pre-K contract. 

Basis of accounting 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). 

Classification of net assets 
To ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources available to the Charter School, 
the accounts of the Charter School are maintained in accordance with the principles of accounting for not-for-
profit organizations. This is the procedure by which resources are classified for reporting purposes into net asset 
groups, established according to their nature and purpose. Accordingly, all financial transactions have been 
recorded and reported by net asset group. 

The assets, liabilities, activities, and net assets are classified based on the existence or absence of donor or grantor-
imposed restrictions.  Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and reported as follows: 

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 
Net assets subject to donor (or certain grantor) imposed restrictions. Some donor-imposed restrictions are 
temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the 
donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be 
maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction expires, that is, when the 
stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource was restricted has been 
fulfilled, or both. The Charter School has $216,667 of net assets with donor restrictions at June 30, 2021, 
which are restricted for the support of the middle school. The Charter School had no net assets with donor 
restrictions at June 30, 2020. 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 
Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to donor (or certain grantor) restrictions. 
The Board of Trustees has discretionary control to use these in carrying on operations in accordance with the 
guidelines established by the Charter School. The Board may designate portions of the current net assets 
without donor restrictions for specific purposes, projects or investment. Board designated net assets are as 
follows: 
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GLOBAL COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2021 
(With Comparative Totals for 2020) 

NOTE A:  THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Cont’d 

June 30, 
2021 2020 

Without donor restrictions 
General reserve $       100,000 $       100,000 
Staff retention 10,375 10,375 
Media center 37,970 37,970 

148,345 148,345 
Undesignated 2,479,642 433,083 
Invested in property and equipment, net of related debt 1,260,890 460,368 

$   3,888,877 $   1,041,796 

Revenue recognition 
Revenue from Exchange Transactions: The Charter School recognizes revenue in accordance with Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts 
with Customers, as amended. ASU 2014-09 applies to exchange transactions with customers that are bound by 
contracts or similar arrangements and establishes a performance obligation approach to revenue recognition. 

The Charter School records substantially all revenues over time as follows:  

State and local per pupil revenue 
The Charter School recognizes revenue as educational programming is provided to students throughout the 
year. The Charter School earns state and local per pupil revenue based on the approved per pupil tuition rate of 
the public school district in which the pupil resides. The amount received each year from the resident district is 
the product of the approved per pupil tuition rate and the full-time equivalent student enrollment of the School. 
Each NYS school district has a fixed per pupil tuition rate which is calculated annually by NYSED in 
accordance with NYS Education Law. Amounts are billed in advance every other month and payments are 
typically received in six installments during the year. At the end of each school year, a reconciliation of actual 
enrollment to billed enrollment is performed and any additional amounts due or excess funds received are 
agreed upon between the Charter School and the district(s) and are paid or recouped. Additional funding is 
available for students requiring special education services. The amount of additional funding is dependent 
upon the length of time and types of services provided by the Charter School to each student, subject to a 
maximum amount based upon a set rate for each district as calculated by NYSED. 

Universal Pre-Kindergarten (Pre-K) 
Similar to state and local per pupil revenue, the Charter School recognizes Pre-K revenue as educational 
programming is provided to students throughout the year. The maximum revenue amount is based on a 
contractually determined fixed amount per student and the number of students enrolled at a point in time. This 
amount could be further reduced if actual costs incurred in providing the Pre-K program are less than the 
maximum calculated amount of the contract. Amounts are paid in installments throughout the course of the 
year, with the final 5% paid upon submission of all required documentation at the end of the contract year.  The 
revenue earned for both years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was approximately $212,000. 
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GLOBAL COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2021 
(With Comparative Totals for 2020) 

NOTE A:  THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Cont’d 

Rental assistance   
Facilities rental assistance funding is provided by the New York City Dept of Education (NYCDOE) to 
qualifying charter schools located in the five boroughs of NYC. In order to receive rental assistance funding, a 
charter school must have commenced instruction or added grade levels in the 2014-15 school year or thereafter, 
and go through a space request process with the NYCDOE. If NYCDOE is not able to provide adequate space, 
the charter school can become eligible for rental assistance. Rental assistance is calculated as the lesser of 30% 
of the per-pupil tuition rate for NYC times the number of students enrolled, or actual total rental costs. As 
rental assistance is based on the number of students enrolled, revenue is recognized throughout the year as 
educational programming is provided to students. 

The following table summarizes contract balances at their respective statement of financial position dates: 

June 30, 
2021 2020 2019 

Grants and other receivables $     86,917 $       108,648 $          1,165 

Contributions 
The Charter School recognizes contributions when cash, securities or other assets, an unconditional promise to 
give, or a notification of a beneficial interest is received. Conditional promises to give, that is, those with a 
measurable performance or other barrier, and a right of return, are not recognized until the conditions on which 
they depend have been substantially met.   

Contributions and unconditional promises to give are recorded as revenue in the appropriate class of net assets 
depending on the existence of any donor restrictions. A contribution that is received and expended in the same 
period for a specific purpose is classified as revenue without donor restrictions.  

Contributions are recorded as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of 
the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated purpose restriction is 
accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and 
reported in the statement of activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions. 

Grant revenue 
Some of the Charter School’s revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable federal and state contracts and grants, 
which are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying 
expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the Charter School has incurred expenditures in 
compliance with specific contract or grant provisions. Certain grants are subject to audit and retroactive 
adjustments by its funders. Any changes resulting from these audits are recognized in the year they become 
known. Qualifying expenditures that have been incurred but are yet to be reimbursed are reported as grants 
receivable in the accompanying statement of financial position. There were no deferred revenues at June 30, 
2020. Deferred revenue at June 30, 2021 was approximately $10,000. The Charter School received cost-
reimbursement grants of approximately $116,000 and $19,800 that have not been recognized at June 30, 2021 
and 2020, respectively, because qualifying expenditures have not yet been incurred. 
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GLOBAL COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2021 
(With Comparative Totals for 2020) 

NOTE A:  THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Cont’d 

Cash 
Cash balances are maintained at financial institutions located in New York and are insured by the FDIC up to 
$250,000 at each institution.  In the normal course of business, the cash account balances at any given time may 
exceed insured limits. However, the Charter School has not experienced any losses in such accounts and does 
not believe it is exposed to significant risk in cash.   

Cash in escrow 
The Charter School maintains cash in an escrow account in accordance with the terms of its charter agreement.  
Cash in escrow was $100,023 and $100,455 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

Grants and other receivables 
Grants and other receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.  
Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts based on its assessment of the current status of 
individual receivables from grants, agencies and others. Balances that are still outstanding after management has 
used reasonable collection efforts are written off against the allowance for doubtful accounts. There was no 
allowance for doubtful accounts at June 30, 2021 and 2020. 

Due from Friends of GCCS, Inc. 
Amounts due from Friends of GCCS, Inc. represent non-interest bearing advances provided to Friends of GCCS, 
Inc. The Charter School expects repayment of these amounts in future years.  Friends of GCCS, Inc. is a separate 
not-for-profit with no board members in common with the Charter School. 

Property and equipment 
Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-
line method on a basis considered adequate to depreciate the assets over their estimated useful lives, which 
range from two to eight years. Leasehold improvements are being amortized with a useful life that is the same 
as the term of the building lease. 

Major renewals and betterments are capitalized, while repairs and maintenance are charged to operations as 
incurred. Upon sale or retirement, the related cost and allowances for depreciation are removed from the accounts 
and the related gain or loss is reflected in operations. 

Contributed services 
The Charter School receives contributed services from volunteers to serve on the Board of Trustees. The 
Charter School received transportation services, nursing services, speech and language consulting and certain 
office equipment from the local district.  The Charter School was unable to determine a value for these services. 

Tax exempt status 
The Charter School is a tax-exempt organization under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and 
applicable state regulations and, accordingly, is exempt from federal and state taxes on income. 

The Charter School files Form 990 tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction. The tax returns for the years 
ended June 30, 2018 through June 30, 2021 are still subject to potential audit by the IRS. Management of the 
Charter School believes it has no material uncertain tax positions and, accordingly, it has not recognized any 
liability for unrecognized tax benefits. 
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GLOBAL COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2021 
(With Comparative Totals for 2020) 

NOTE A:  THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Cont’d 

Marketing costs 
The Charter School expenses marketing costs as they are incurred. Total marketing and recruiting costs 
approximated $109,000 and $72,000 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

Deferred revenue 
The Charter School records grant revenue as deferred revenue until it is expended for the purpose of the grant, 
at which time it is recognized as revenue. 

Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Comparatives for the year ended June 30, 2020 
The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information in total but not by 
functional classification. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such 
information should be read in conjunction with the Charter School’s financial statements for the year ended 
June 30, 2020, from which the summarized information was derived. 

New accounting pronouncements 

Leases 
In February 2016, the FASB issued a new standard related to leases to increase transparency and 
comparability among entities by requiring the recognition of right-of-use (“ROU”) assets and lease 
liabilities on the consolidated statement of financial position. Most prominent among the changes in the 
standard is the recognition of ROU assets and lease liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as 
operating leases under current U.S. GAAP. For nonpublic entities, the FASB voted on May 20, 2020, to 
extend the guidance in this new standard to be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, 
and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022.  The Charter School is currently 
evaluating the provisions of this standard to determine the impact the new standard will have on the Charter 
School’s financial position or results of operations. 

Gifts-in-kind 
In September 2020, the FASB issued a new accounting update to improve transparency in the reporting of 
contributed nonfinancial assets, also known as gifts-in-kind. The update requires not-for-profit entities to 
present contributed nonfinancial assets separately on the statement of activities, apart from contributions of 
cash and other financial assets. In addition, the update requires not-for-profit entities to disclose in the 
notes to the financial statements a breakout of the different types of gifts-in-kind recognized, any donor 
restrictions associated with the gift, the valuation technique(s) used to arrive at the fair value measure, 
whether or not the gift-in-kind was monetized, and any policies on monetization. The update is effective 
for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021 and will be applied on a retrospective basis. The Charter 
School is currently evaluating the provisions of this update to determine the impact it will have on the 
Charter School’s financial statements. 
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GLOBAL COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2021 
(With Comparative Totals for 2020) 

NOTE A:  THE CHARTER SCHOOL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Cont’d 

Subsequent events 
The Charter School has conducted an evaluation of potential subsequent events occurring after the statement of 
financial position date through October 26, 2021, which is the date the financial statements are available to be 
issued.  See Note M. 

NOTE B:  LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY 

The Charter School regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other contractual 
commitments. The Charter School’s main source of liquidity is its cash accounts. 

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-month period, the Charter 
School considers all expenditures related to its ongoing activities of education and public service as well as the 
conduct of services undertaken to support those activities to be general expenditures.  

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, the Charter 
School operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover general 
expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources. Refer to the statement of cash flows which identifies 
the sources and uses of the Charter School’s cash and shows positive cash generated by operations for fiscal 
years 2021 and 2020. 

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use, 
within one year of the statement of financial position date, comprise the following: 

June 30, 
2021 2020 

Cash $ 1,902,066 $    1,874,843 
Grants and other receivables 454,768 410,462 

Total financial assets available within one year 2,356,834 2,285,305 

Less: 
Amounts unavailable for general expenditures within one year, due to
  Amounts unavailable to management without Board approval:
    Board designated for general reserve (100,000) (100,000)
    Board designated for staff retention (10,375) (10,375)
    Board designated for media center (37,970) (37,970)

  Total amounts unavailable to management without Board approval (148,345) (148,345)
  Restricted by donors with purpose restrictions (216,667)  -

(365,012) (148,345) 

Total financial assets available to management for general 
expenditures within one year $ 1,991,822 $   2,136,960 
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GLOBAL COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2021 
(With Comparative Totals for 2020) 

NOTE C:  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment consists of the following: 

June 30, 
2021 2020 

Furniture and fixtures $   469,345 $       437,340 
Computers and equipment 569,606 459,521 
Leasehold improvements 974,983 606,125 
Construction in progress 537,919 60,337 

2,551,853 1,563,323 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 1,250,816 1,022,927 

$   1,301,037 $      540,396 

Total depreciation and amortization expense was $227,889 and $164,414 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 
2020, respectively.  At June 30, 2021, a portion of the Charter School’s construction of leasehold improvements 
was in progress. Construction in progress is stated at cost. No provision for amortization is made on 
construction in progress until such time as the relevant assets are completed and put into use. Management 
does not anticipate incurring any significant additional costs to complete the construction in progress. 

NOTE D:  SCHOOL FACILITY 

The Charter School leases its facilities located at 2350 Fifth Avenue. The original lease term was from 
February 1, 2015 through July 31, 2017 with two options to renew, each for an additional five years. During 
the year ended June 30, 2017, the Charter School exercised the first option to renew their lease through July 
2022. Monthly rental payments are $90,000 through July 2022. The Charter School was required to deposit 
$180,000 with the landlord to be held as a security deposit as part of the renewal option. The Charter School is 
required to maintain general liability insurance in case of an incident that causes the demise of the premises.  
The Charter School will also pay additional expenses for utilities, maintenance, improvements, and real estate 
taxes. 

On June 30, 2021, the Charter School entered into a thirty-three year sublease agreement for space located at 
218 West 147th Street effective July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2054 with Friends of GCCS, Inc.  The lease calls 
for base monthly rent of $57,500 at the beginning of the lease increasing to $149,500 over the thirty-three year 
lease term.  The Charter School was required to pay a security deposit of $201,250 for the lease. 
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GLOBAL COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2021 
(With Comparative Totals for 2020) 

NOTE D:  SCHOOL FACILITY, Cont’d 

The future minimum payments on these agreements for base rents are as follows: 

Year ending June 30, Amount 

2022 
2023
2024
2025
2026

Thereafter

$    1,770,000 
       1,033,000 
       1,127,000 
       1,357,000 
       1,357,000 
     45,908,000 

$ 52,552,000 

Rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $1,221,180 and $1,156,970, respectively. 

NOTE E:  LEASES AND COMMITMENTS 

The Charter School entered into non-cancelable lease agreements for office equipment and furniture expiring at 
various dates through July 2023.  

During August 2016 the Charter School entered into a capital lease for furniture and computer equipment. The 
lease requires monthly payments of $1,350 through July 2021, with interest at 7%. The furniture and computer 
equipment under capital lease is included in property and equipment on the accompanying statement of 
financial position with a net book value of $14,299 and $21,163 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
Amortization of capital leases is included in depreciation and amortization expense. The balance of the capital 
lease payable at June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $1,342 and $16,853, respectively. 

In July 2018 the Charter School entered into two additional capital leases, one for furniture and the other for 
computer equipment. The leases require monthly payments of $1,663 through July 2023, with interest at 8.2%, 
and monthly payments of $723 through July 2021, with interest at 7.5%, respectively. The furniture and 
computer equipment under capital lease is included in property and equipment on the accompanying statement 
of financial position with a net book value of $39,156 and $63,375 at June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  
The balance of these capital leases payable at June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $38,805 and $63,175, respectively. 

In August 2018 the Charter School entered into an operating lease for equipment. The lease requires monthly 
payments of $3,398 through August 2021. 
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GLOBAL COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2021 
(With Comparative Totals for 2020) 

NOTE E:  LEASES AND COMMITMENTS, Cont’d 

Annual estimated future minimum rental payments required under the aforementioned operating and capital 
leases for the next three years are as follows: 

Capital Operating 
Year ending June 30, leases leases 

2022 $         22,029 $           3,398 
2023 
2024 

19,956 
1,663

-
 -

3,398 

Net minimum lease payments 43,648 

Less amount representing interest 3,501 

Present value of net minimum lease payments 40,147
  included in capital lease liability 

Less current maturities of capital lease obligations 

  included in current portion of capital lease liability 19,532 

Long-term capital lease obligations $        20,615 

NOTE F:  CONTINGENCY 

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by funding sources. Such audits might result in 
disallowance of costs submitted for reimbursement by the Charter School. Management is of the opinion that 
such disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the accompanying financial statements. 
Accordingly, no amounts have been provided in the accompanying financial statements for such potential 
claims. 

NOTE G:  CONCENTRATIONS 

At June 30, 2021 and 2020, approximately 81% and 91%, respectively, of grants and other receivables are due 
from the New York State Department of Education relating to certain grants.  

During the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 approximately 70% and 80%, respectively, of total operating 
revenue and support came from per-pupil funding. The per-pupil rate is set annually by the State based on the 
school district in which the Charter School’s students reside. 
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GLOBAL COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2021 
(With Comparative Totals for 2020) 

NOTE H: RETIREMENT PLAN 

The Charter School has established a 403(b) retirement plan for employees. The Plan began operations 
effective September 15, 2016. All full time employees are automatically enrolled at a base contribution of 2% 
of compensation unless they make an alternative election. The Plan also provides for a discretionary employer 
match. The employer match for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was approximately $78,620 and 
$49,650, respectively. 

NOTE I: FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one program or 
supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently applied. 
Expenses (including but not limited to salaries, benefits, payroll taxes, purchased services, occupancy costs, 
and supplies and materials) which are allocated to more than one program or supporting function are allocated 
on the basis of estimates of time, effort, and usage.  

NOTE J: PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM NOTE PAYABLE 

In response to the COVID-19 outbreak, in April 2020 the Charter School applied for and was approved by a 
bank for a loan of $1,154,800 through the Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”) established by the Small 
Business Administration. The loan has a maturity of 5 years and an interest rate of 1%. The loan was funded 
on June 17, 2020. PPP loans can be forgiven by SBA if at least 60% of the funds are expended for payroll and 
related benefits, while the remaining balance can be used for mortgage interest, rent, utilities, and lease 
payments made during the covered period, as defined in the loan. Employment levels are also required to be 
maintained in accordance with the PPP guidelines. The Charter School met the requirements for forgiveness 
and on January 25, 2021 the loan was forgiven in full by the SBA. 

NOTE K: FINANCIAL IMPACT OF COVID-19 OUTBREAK 

On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization (“WHO”) announced a global health emergency because 
of a new strain of coronavirus (the “COVID-19 outbreak”) and the risks to the international community as the 
virus spreads globally beyond its point of origin. In March 2020, the WHO classified the COVID-19 outbreak 
as a pandemic, based on the rapid increase in exposure globally. The full impact of the COVID-19 outbreak 
continues to evolve as of the date of this report. As such, it is uncertain as to the full magnitude that the 
pandemic will have on the Charter School’s financial condition, liquidity, and future results of operations.  
Management is actively monitoring the global situation on its financial condition, liquidity, operations, 
suppliers, industry, and workforce. Given the daily evolution of the COVID-19 outbreak and the global 
responses to curb its spread, the Charter School is not able to estimate the effects of the COVID-19 outbreak on 
its results of operations, financial condition, or liquidity for fiscal year 2022. 

In response to the COVID-19 outbreak, the Federal Government passed several COVID relief acts which 
include funding for elementary and secondary education. The Elementary and Secondary School Emergency 
Relief Fund (ESSER Fund) was established to award grants to state and local educational agencies. The 
Charter School has recognized $125,566 of revenue relative to ESSER grants during the year ended June 30, 
2021.  
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GLOBAL COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Cont’d 

JUNE 30, 2021 
(With Comparative Totals for 2020) 

NOTE L: RENEWAL PROCESS 

The Charter School is currently in the process of renewing its charter as granted by the New York State Board 
of Regents. The Charter currently expires June 30, 2022. The renewal process includes review by NYSED of 
various operational and governance aspects, including fiscal health and internal controls, board governance, and 
academic performance. Upon review of the application for renewal and results, NYSED will determine if the 
charter should be renewed and if so, for how long. Successful charter renewals can range from one to five 
years.  At this time, management of the Charter School expects the charter to be renewed. 

NOTE M: SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

On July 13, 2021 the Charter School became the guarantor of a loan that Friends of GCCS, Inc. obtained in 
conjunction with making improvements to the building the Charter School began leasing on June 30, 2021 (see 
Note D).  The principal balance of the loan is $5,000,000 which is fully guaranteed by the Charter School. The 
loan bears interest at 5%. The maximum potential amount of future payments of principal and interest 
(undiscounted) the Charter School could be required to make under the guarantee is approximately $6,625,000.  
The guaranty shall continue in effect until all obligations are fully paid, which is expected to be July 1, 2028. 
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October 26, 2021 

To the Board of Trustees 
Global Community Charter School 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Global Community Charter School as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2021, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, we considered Global Community Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting (internal 
control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
Global Community Charter School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A reasonable possibility exists when the 
likelihood of an event occurring is either reasonably possible or probable as defined as follows: 

 Reasonably possible. The chance of the future event or events occurring is more than remote but less than 
likely. 

 Probable. The future event or events are likely to occur. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  

*     *     *    * * 
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This communication is intended solely for the information and use of Management, Finance Committee Members 
and Board Members and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

The purpose of this communication is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and the results of that testing.  This communication is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Global Community Charter School’s internal control over 
financial reporting.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

We appreciate the cooperation from your staff that our personnel received during the audit of the Charter School’s 
financial statements.  Should you have any questions or comments, please contact Jackie Lee or Kurt Button. 

Very truly yours, 

MENGEL, METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP 
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October 26, 2021 

To the Board of Trustees 
Global Community Charter School 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Global Community Charter School as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2021, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, we considered Global Community Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting (internal 
control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
Global Community Charter School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A reasonable possibility exists when the 
likelihood of an event occurring is either reasonably possible or probable as defined as follows: 

 Reasonably possible. The chance of the future event or events occurring is more than remote but less than 
likely. 

 Probable. The future event or events are likely to occur. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  

*     *     *    * * 
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This communication is intended solely for the information and use of Management, Finance Committee Members 
and Board Members and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

The purpose of this communication is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and the results of that testing.  This communication is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Global Community Charter School’s internal control over 
financial reporting.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

We appreciate the cooperation from your staff that our personnel received during the audit of the Charter School’s 
financial statements.  Should you have any questions or comments, please contact Jackie Lee or Kurt Button. 

Very truly yours, 

MENGEL, METZGER, BARR & CO. LLP 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND 
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Board of Trustees 
Global Community Charter School 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of Global Community Charter School which comprise the 
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2021 and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, 
functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and 
have issued our report thereon dated October 26, 2021. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

Management of Global Community Charter School is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered 
Global Community Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Global Community Charter 
School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Global Community 
Charter School’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Charter School’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.  
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to 
be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.   
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Global Community Charter School’s financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial 
statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, 
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance 
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the Organization’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable 
for any other purpose. 

Rochester, New York 
October 26, 2021 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; 
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; 

AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
 IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

Board of Trustees 
Global Community Charter School 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Global Community Charter School’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on Global Community 
Charter School’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. Global Community Charter School’s 
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs.   

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its 
federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Global Community Charter School’s major 
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.   

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations 
(CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that 
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence about Global Community Charter School’s compliance with those requirements and performing such 
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.  
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.  
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on Global Community Charter School’s compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, Global Community Charter School complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal programs for the year 
ended June 30, 2021. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of Global Community Charter School is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing 
our audit of compliance, we considered Global Community Charter School’s internal control over compliance with 
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance 
for the major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Global Community Charter School’s 
internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect 
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material 
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we 
consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing on internal 
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
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Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 

We have audited the financial statements of Global Community Charter School as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2021, and have issued our report thereon dated October 26, 2021, which contained an unmodified opinion on those 
financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a 
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis 
as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling 
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or 
to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards 
is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.   

Rochester, New York 
October 26, 2021 
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GLOBAL COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Federal 
AL 

Pass-through 
Grantor's 

Total 
Federal 

  U.S. Department of Education:
    Passed through NYS Department of Education

  Title I - Grants to Local Educational Agencies 
  Title I - Grants to Local Educational Agencies 

Total Title I 
  Title IIA - Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants 
  Title IIIA - English Learning Acquisition State Grants 
  Title IIIA - English Learning Acquisition State Grants 

Total Title IIIA 
  Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief
      (ESSER) Fund 

Number 

84.010 
84.010 
84.010 
84.367 
84.365 
84.365 
84.365 

84.425D 

Number 

0021-21-4155 
0021-20-4155 

0147-21-4155 
0293-21-0085 
0293-20-0085 

5890-21-4155 

Expenditures

182,228
14,562 

196,790
57,200
15,622
2,153 

17,775

125,566 

TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 397,331

  U.S. Department of Agriculture:
    Passed through NYS Department of Education 

Child Nutrition Cluster
 Summer Food Service Program 
 National School Lunch Program 

Total Child Nutrition Cluster 
TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 

10.559 
10.555 

310500861012 
310500861012 

384,680
35,395 

420,075 
420,075 

TOTAL ALL PROGRAMS $    817,406 

NOTE A:  BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying schedule of federal awards (the “schedule”) includes the federal grant activity Global 
Community Charter School and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule 
is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used 
in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. 
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GLOBAL COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

NOTE B:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are 
recognized following, as applicable, the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations 
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 

Global Community Charter School has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed 
under the Uniform Guidance.  

No amounts were passed through to subrecipients. 
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GLOBAL COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

• Material weakness (es) identified? 

•  Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are 
not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements
  noted? 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 

• Material weakness (es) identified? 

•  Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are 
not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance 
  for major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
  to be reported in accordance with section
  2 CFR 200.516(a)? 

Identification of major program: 

AL Number:

10.559 
10.555 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
  type A and type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

Unmodified 

yes x no 

yes x none reported 

yes x no 

yes x no 

yes x none reported 

Unmodified 

yes x no 

   Name of Federal Program or Cluster: 

Child Nutrition Cluster 
Summer Food Service Program 
National School Lunch Program 

$750,000 

yes x no 
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GLOBAL COMMUNITY CHARTER SCHOOL 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, Cont’d 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

FINDING – FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 

None. 

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS – MAJOR FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM 

None.  

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

None. 
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1. Management letter attached 

2. Single Audit Attached as Uniform Guidance – FINAL 

3. CSP Agreed Upon Procedure – N/A 

4. Evidence of Escrow – Attached 

5. Corrective Action Plan – N/A 
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Board Meeting Minutes 
Global Community Charter School 

July 21, 2020 
6:38 p.m. – 8:55 p.m. (scheduled to convene at 6:30pm) 

Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Trustees (BOT) for Global Community Charter School 
(GCCS) held on July 21, 2020 by video conference. 

JZ noted quorum (JZ, MJ, KM, NP and RM in attendance) and called the meeting to order at 
6:38 PM 

Roll Call 
BOT by video conference: James Zika (JZ); Mary Jilek (MJ); Kate McGovern (KM); Rob Moser 
(RM); Nick Pozek (NP) 
GCCS Staff by video conference: Bill Holmes (BH), Kristan Norgrove (KN) 
Parent Representation: None 
BOT Candidates by video conference:  Priyanka Gandhi and Damaris Herron-Watkins 
Public by video conference: None 

Public comment 
No public comment. 

Organizational Core Values 
KM and KN introduced the topic of Core Values, the process we went through to develop these 
Core Values as well as why they are important.  KN spoke to each of the Core Values 
documented and responded to a number of questions from the BOT.  There was a discussion 
about these Core Values appearing to be more staff facing and where we might appropriately 
share these Core Values with our GCCS stakeholders. 

Noting no further discussion, MJ moved, and KM seconded, a motion “to adopt the 
Organizational Core Values of Student First, Diversity, Teamwork and Excellence as presented.” 
The motion was passed unanimously (JZ, MJ, KM, NP, RM). 

Middle School Build-Out 
BH discussed an update on the middle school build-out project, zoning issues, implications of 
the current situation and potential options for moving forward.  BH discussed a recently 
available property on W 147th Street and School Leaderships recent visit to the property.  There 
were a number of questions raised by the BOT including what are our next steps, how this 
impacts rental assistance and  what is the current thinking of School Leadership as to how they 
might utilize this space. 

BH also indicated that we were invited to the second round of the Walton Foundation grant 
process. 

School Opening Plans 
JZ introduced the agenda item, the 7/31 requirement for submission of an Opening Plan and 
asked KN for an update on the status of our preparation.  KN provided an update on the status 
of our preparation of our plan and indicated that she will have a more detailed update for our 
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next BOT meeting.  BH discussed a number of the facility safety requirements and many of the 
logistic challenges we have for opening.  KM asked about the feedback we are hearing from staff 
concerning school opening. 

BH shared a link for a fundraising effort for reusable masks (Made by Hanes) 
https://masks.com/products/global-community-charter-school-new-york-ny-mask-drive . 

Fundraising Task Force Update 
KM discussed the recent activities of the Fundraising Task Force, their recommendation of 
rekindling the Strategy Task Force and the termination of our engagement with Bridge 
Philanthropic Consulting pending completion of the promised training. 

BH introduced and the BOT discussed the Strategic Planning Proposal we received from Pasek 
Consulting. 

Finance Committee Update 
BH discussed that it is looking like we will have a small surplus from our 2019-2020 operations 
and that the annual audit process has begun and the BOT members need to complete their 
Annual affidavits.  BH provided a PPP Loan update and that the loan should be 100% utilized in 
August. 

Education and Accountability Committee (EAC) Update 
KM shared an update on the activities of the EAC as reflected in the meeting minutes attached to 
the BOT Agenda. 

Chief Academic Officer Update 
KN discussed the attendance data from the Dashboard, the status of our technology device 
coverage for our students and an analysis of attendance of students with and without devices 
where the result indicated no noticeable difference.  KN went on to discuss the status of summer 
planning and our readiness for our 6th grade program. 

Chief Operating Officer Update 
BH provided an update on the summer renovation projects, which are all on track.  BH 
discussed the status of the updates to the Staff Handbook (as linked in the Agenda).  JZ asked 
about the deadline for when we need to have the Staff Handbook completed in light of Little 
Bird needing two more weeks to complete the updates. 

JZ proposed that we move the discussion and adoption of the Admissions Policy, Safety Policies 
to strengthen procedures for visitors, the updates to the Family Handbook and the new SED 
requirements of a Data Privacy Policy and Parent Bill of Rights to our next BOT Meeting.  MJ 
also mentioned that we need to add the adoption of a School Calendar to our next BOT Meeting. 

Board Officer Slate 
JZ introduced the idea of and reasons why we might consider keeping the Board Officers as is 
for the time being.  There was general consensus. 

https://masks.com/products/global-community-charter-school-new-york-ny-mask-drive


 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Board Meetings 
The BOT discussed keeping the Monthly BOT Meetings scheduled for the third Wednesday of 
each month.  It was agreed. 

Future BOT Meeting Agendas 
JZ discussed ideas around the Agendas for upcoming BOT Meetings including fundraising 
workshop / training, strategic planning meeting, review and vote of policy and handbook 
updates, etc.  The BOT discussed when we would want to schedule our next meeting and any 
potential complications with rescheduling our next meeting.  JZ will send the BOT members a 
Doodle for scheduling. 

Annual CAO / COO Evaluations 
JZ asked BH and KN about their thoughts on expected response rate on a request to staff for 
input into the CAO / COO Evaluations.  Expecting that we would get a reasonable response rate, 
the BOT decided that we would solicit staff input. 

Annual BOT Evaluation 
JZ will initiate the BOT evaluation survey process. 

Other School Business 
The BOT discussed proposed language that we will consider at the next BOT meeting when 
reviewing edits to the Staff Handbook concerning administrative staff vacation accruals for the 
2020-2021 school year.  The BOT is directionally supportive of this change being proposed in 
the Staff Handbook. 

Adjournment 
JZ adjourned the meeting at 8:55 PM. 

All trustee meetings for the Global Community Charter School are open meetings subject to the 
NYS open meetings law. While we encourage public participation and provide a designated time 
for public comment, individuals are limited to two minutes total of public comment each, unless 
the Board asks for additional feedback. All trustees and members of the public must abide by 
Global Community Charter School norms around professionalism and civility in their 
comments, these norms can be found in our school handbook. Complaints against a specific 
employee or public comments that may reveal confidential information will, consistent with the 
open meetings law, be handled through our dispute resolution process or may be heard in 
executive session. 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Emergency 
Board Meeting Minutes 

Global Community Charter School 
August 13, 2020 

7:00 p.m. – 7:19 p.m. (scheduled to convene at 7:00pm) 
Minutes of an emergency meeting of the Board of Trustees (BOT) for Global Community 

Charter School (GCCS) held on August 13, 2020 by video conference. 

JZ noted quorum (JZ, MJ, KM, RM and NP in attendance) and called the meeting to order at 
7:00 PM 

Roll Call 
BOT by video conference: James Zika (JZ); Mary Jilek (MJ); Kate McGovern (KM); Rob Moser 
(RM); Nick Pozek (NP); Peter Kauffman (PK) 
GCCS Staff by video conference: Bill Holmes (BH), Kristan Norgrove (KN) 
Parent Representation: None 
BOT Candidates by video conference:  Damaris Herron-Watkins 
Public by video conference: None 

Public comment 
No public comment 

Discussion of the SY20-21 Calendar and Approach to Opening School 
KN presented the proposed SY20-21 calendar and the changes from prior years’ calendars.  KN 
also presented the “slow start” approach for opening school to address the COVID pandemic. 
BH indicated that there is no material change in charter for this “slow start” approach. 

Noting no further discussion, RM moved, and KM  seconded, a motion “to approve the SY20-21 
calendar as presented.”  The motion was passed unanimously (JZ, MJ, KM, RM, NP, PK). 

Bill provided an update on Facilities, the Middle School expansion and possible construction 
projects.  BH discussed a recent proposal that he received from DBI.  PK provided a perspective 
based on his experience with DBI.  No BOT action required at this time. 

Adjournment 
JZ adjourned the meeting at 7:19 PM. 

All trustee meetings for the Global Community Charter School are open meetings subject to the 
NYS open meetings law. While we encourage public participation and provide a designated time 
for public comment, individuals are limited to two minutes total of public comment each, unless 
the Board asks for additional feedback. All trustees and members of the public must abide by 
Global Community Charter School norms around professionalism and civility in their 
comments, these norms can be found in our school handbook. Complaints against a specific 
employee or public comments that may reveal confidential information will, consistent with the 



 
 

open meetings law, be handled through our dispute resolution process or may be heard in 
executive session. 
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Board Meeting Minutes 
Global Community Charter School 

August 19, 2020 
6:01 p.m. – 8:33 p.m. (scheduled to convene at 6:00pm) 

Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Trustees (BOT) for Global Community Charter School 
(GCCS) held on August 19, 2020 in the school building at 2350 Fifth Avenue and by 

videoconference. 

JZ noted quorum (JZ, MJ, KM and RM in attendance) and called the meeting to order at 
6:01PM 

Roll Call 
BOT by video conference: James Zika (JZ); Mary Jilek (MJ); Kate McGovern (KM); Rob Moser 
(RM); Ibrahim Yusuf (IY); Peter Kauffman (PK); Nick Pozek (NP) 
GCCS Staff: Bill Holmes (BH) 
GCCS Staff by video conference: Kristan Norgrove (KN) 
Parent Representation: None 
BOT Candidates by video conference:  Priyanka Gandhi and Damaris Herron-Watkins 
Public by video conference: None 

Public comment 
No public comment. 

Approval of July and August Minutes 
MJ moved, and RM seconded, a motion “to approve Minutes from the July 21 Regular BOT 
Meeting.”  The motion was passed unanimously (JZ, MJ, NP, RM) with IY abstaining. 

MJ moved, and JZ seconded, a motion “to approve Minutes from the August 13 Emergency BOT 
Meeting.”  The motion was passed unanimously (JZ, MJ, NP, RM) with IY abstaining. 

Employee and Family Handbooks 
BH discussed the changes made to the Employee Handbook from last year.  Highlighted changes 
included changes to the Parental Leave policy, parking policy and we modified the vacation 
accrual policy for 2020-2021.  JZ confirmed with BH that Little Bird did their review of the Staff 
Handbook.  We discussed changes made to address the current COVID situation as well as the 
distinction between a leave versus an accommodation.  MJ reiterated the need to maintain clear 
documentation of leave and accommodation requests. 

Noting no further discussion, MJ moved, and NP seconded, a motion “to approve the SY20-21 
Employee Handbook as presented.”  The motion was passed unanimously (JZ, MJ, NP, RM, 
KM, IY). 

BH discussed the changes made to the Family Handbook from last year.  Highlighted the major 
change being the inclusion of the Parents Bill of Rights.  BH indicated this document did 
undergo a legal review.  JZ asked about the logistics of having families execute the signature 
page. There were additional edits highlighted by the BOT including the formatting of the table 
on page 9, inclusion of a higher resolution image of the School Calendar and the correction of 



 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

the school year reference on page 41 from 2019-20 to 2020-21.  The BOT noted a number of 
“current year”, post-COVID updates they would like to see (i.e. K-5 reference to PK-6, the noting 
of more on-line instruction in various sections such as statements about our use of Zoom, are 
Parent Groups meeting this year and how, do we do online instruction when it snows, etc.)  The 
BOT agreed that additional revisions should be made to the Family Handbook and brought back 
to the BOT for approval. 

Policy Changes 
BH introduced the Data Privacy Policy and Parent Bill of Rights.  MJ asked who our appointed 
Data Protection Officer will be.  BH indicated the GCCS Data Protection Officer is Marelene 
Lora.  We discussed how School Leadership is planning to introduce these new policies to staff. 

Noting no further discussion, RM moved, and JZ seconded, a motion “to adopt the Data Privacy 
Policy and Parent Bill of Rights as presented.”  The motion was passed unanimously (JZ, MJ, 
NP, RM, KM, IY, PK). 

Noting no further discussion, KM moved, and MJ seconded, a motion “to adopt the Data Privacy 
Policy and Parent Bill of Rights as presented.”  The motion was passed unanimously (JZ, MJ, 
NP, RM, KM, IY, PK). 

Approval of June Minutes 
The BOT discussed a minor edit to the draft minutes presented.  After making the edit, and 
noting no further discussion, MJ moved, and JZ seconded, a motion “to approve Minutes from 
the June 24 Regular BOT Meeting.”  The motion was passed unanimously (JZ, MJ, NP, RM, KM, 
IY, PK). 

Middle School Expansion / Construction 
BH introduced the current status of obtaining bids for a Project Management firm to assist 
GCCS with Middle School Expansion and Construction considerations and planning.  We have 
received the attached bid from DBI and are awaiting a bid from Macro Project Management.  BH 
doesn’t believe we will receive a bid from Civic Builders.  We discussed the post-COVID real 
estate market and what our options might be moving forward.  BH reiterated the situation 
pushing us to consider a new Project Management firm. 

Board Recruitment 
JZ introduced that we have all the paperwork necessary to consider Priyanka Gandhi as a 
member of the BOT.  The BOT discussed her candidacy and thanked Priyanka for her 
participation to date. 

Noting no further discussion, MJ moved, and JZ seconded, a motion that “After review of a 
thorough criminal history record check via fingerprinting which is deemed acceptable by 
NYSED, and having discovered no State or federal criminal history, or having provided 
information regarding such history to NYSED, if found, and having verified that any academic 
and/or professional credential or qualification presented by Priyanka Gandhi is genuine, and 
having reviewed the application in its entirety, has voted to select Priyanka Gandhi as a member 
to its Board of Trustees, with a term expiring on 8/31/2023, pending approval by NYSED.”  The 
motion was passed unanimously (JZ, MJ, NP, RM, KM, IY, PK).  The resolution approving 
Priyanka Gandhi will be formally adopted upon SED’s approval. 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Fundraising Task Force Update 
KM presented and discussed the task force materials attached to the Agenda.  There will be no 
Tastes and Toasts on October 14th and instead, the task force is considering other options.  The 
BOT discussed some questions and concerns with the proposed training by Bridge Philanthropic 
Consulting. 

Strategy Task Force Update 
JZ presented an update on the task force activity and plans to engage Dan Pasek.  There is a 
meeting Friday. 

Finance Committee Update 
BH discussed the current activities for Audit preparations.  RM asked about any findings from 
last year for which we have concern this year. 

Education and Accountability Committee Update 
KM discussed the highlights of the last EAC meeting including the need to hire a new PYP 
Coordinator.  PK asked about how we are balancing IB with the state standards and how that 
affects the hiring of a new PYP Coordinator.  KN elaborated on this topic, thoughts on hiring 
internally and how we are making IB work in a COVID environment. 

Chief Academic Officer Report 
KN discussed plans for re-opening and recent academic staff activities, she is focussing on staff 
safety and security issues.  KN noted that there continues to be movement in the split in the 
types of learning desired by families (remote, in-person, etc).  We discussed the remote learning 
attendance practices proposed for this year as well as the Zoom practices for staff and families. 

KN discussed our preparation and readiness for Middle School opening (i.e. in person Middle 
School orientation). KN outlined current Professional Development activities underway and 
planned.  MJ asked about the operational PD we have planned, BH discussed. 

Chief Operating Officer Report 
BH discussed operational and facilities plans and activities for re-opening.  BH highlighted a 
number of food service and hydration issues and solutions we plan on implementing.  MJ asked 
about Media Center practices (i.e. sharing of books) and traffic flow through the building, KN 
discussed. 

BH discussed student retention.  We currently have 524 enrolled, 506 in K-6 which is 20 more 
than we used in our budget.  We do expect some will transfer out but have a cushion.  KM asked 
about the PK program.  KN indicated that we currently have 14 enrolled in-person and 4 
planning remote learning. 

Annual CAO and COO Evaluations 
MJ introduced the agenda item and how we normally approach these evaluations.  MJ presented 
a proposed survey which is shorter in length that we might use this year.  Discussed that the 
BOT will initiate this survey shortly and schedule a meeting to review and analyze the results 
captured. 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Items for Future Meetings 
MJ presented that the BOT needs to review the Performance Framework and ByLaws for 
possible updates.  These should be reviewed by BOT members as the BOT will schedule these 
reviews on a future BOT Agenda. 

Adjournment 
MJ adjourned the meeting at 8:33 PM. 

All trustee meetings for the Global Community Charter School are open meetings subject to the 
NYS open meetings law. While we encourage public participation and provide a designated time 
for public comment, individuals are limited to two minutes total of public comment each, unless 
the Board asks for additional feedback. All trustees and members of the public must abide by 
Global Community Charter School norms around professionalism and civility in their 
comments, these norms can be found in our school handbook. Complaints against a specific 
employee or public comments that may reveal confidential information will, consistent with the 
open meetings law, be handled through our dispute resolution process or may be heard in 
executive session. 
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Board Meeting Minutes 
Global Community Charter School 

September 16, 2020 
6:32 p.m. – 8:43 p.m. (scheduled to convene at 6:30pm) 

Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Trustees (BOT) for Global Community Charter School 
(GCCS) held on September 16, 2020 in the school building at 2350 Fifth Avenue and by 

videoconference. 

JZ noted quorum (JZ, MJ, KM, PG, NP and RM in attendance) and called the meeting to order 
at 6:32PM 

Roll Call 
BOT by video conference: James Zika (JZ); Mary Jilek (MJ); Kate McGovern (KM); Rob Moser 
(RM); Ibrahim Yusuf (IY); Nick Pozek (NP); Priyanka Gandhi (PG) 
GCCS Staff: Bill Holmes (BH) 
GCCS Staff by video conference: Kristan Norgrove (KN) 
Parent Representation: None 
BOT Candidates:  None 
Public: None 

Public comment 
No public comment. 

Approval of August Minutes 
Noting no discussion.  RM moved, and NP seconded, a motion “to approve Minutes from the 
August 19 Regular BOT Meeting.”  The motion was passed unanimously (JZ, MJ, KM, RM, NP, 
PG). 

Middle School Project Management 
BH introduced the activities that have taken place since our last meeting and the two (2) bids 
that we received and the one (1) vendor that withdrew from consideration for the Middle School 
Project Management work.  Both bids are quoted with ‘not to exceed amounts’ based on a set of 
documented assumptions.  BH responded to a number of questions and discussion from the 
BOT.  BH also introduced the option of staying with the current vendor, Matter Real Estate. 
There was no specific recommendation from School Leadership. 

Noting no further discussion, MJ moved and PG seconded, a motion to “to approve the award of 
the Middle School Project Management work to DBI  Project.”  The motion was passed 
unanimously (JZ, MJ, KM, RM, NP, PG, IY). 

Family Handbooks 
BH introduced the changes made to the Family Handbook from last year’s version.  MJ and KM 
highlighted that the Handbook should provide clear text that specifically points the reader to 
major changes, especially items in the Addendum.  MJ also discussed and recommended 
additional edits around text that appears more for the Staff Handbook as well as edits around 
the arrival at school process. 
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Noting no further discussion, RM moved, and JZ seconded, a motion “to approve the SY20-21 
Family Handbook with the edits discussed.”  The motion was passed unanimously (JZ, MJ, KM, 
RM, NP, PG, IY). 

BOT Recruitment Update 
JZ indicated that PG has been approved by SED and again welcomed PG to the BOT.  KM 
discussed the recent activities around BOT recruitment and the candidates with whom we have 
been in discussions, and the resumes attached to the Agenda.  The BOT discussed GCCS’ 
commitment to diversity and wanting to reflect that commitment with the Trustees we consider 
for our Board.  The BOT discussed ideas for moving forward in our BOT Recruitment efforts 

Middle School Build Out 
BH introduced the PellOverton update for the 147th Street location attached to the Agenda.  KM 
asked about the change from utilizing this space for K-2 versus middle school as presented.  BH 
discussed that rental assistance issues led to this change. 

Fundraising Task Force Update 
KM introduced the Task Force minutes attached to the Agenda.  BH discussed the Harvest LLC 
proposal included in the meeting minutes.  MJ indicated that the next steps for Fundraising 
could / should be tied to the work of the Strategy Task Force. 

Strategy Task Force Update 
JZ introduced and discussed the recent conversation the Task Force had with Dan Passek. 

Finance Committee Update 
BH indicated there are no highlights or concerns with the P&L or Balance Sheet but that our 
enrollment is running at our budgeted enrollment and not above it where we would prefer.  BH 
discussed that we are ready to begin the forbearance process with the PPE loan.  The BOT asked 
a number of questions about our enrollment numbers and enrollment trends.  BH addressed the 
BOT questions. 

Chief Academic Officer Report 
KN discussed that the school is currently on Remote Learning and discussed GCCS plans 
between now and early October, as well as what she is hearing from other charter schools.  KN 
indicated that remote instruction is going well, highlighted a number of activities (including PYP 
assembly plans) and that all students are receiving their extra services.  JZ thanked KN for her 
leadership and commitment to GCCS. 

Chief Operating Officer Report 
BH provided an update on GCCS’ COVID-related cleaning, building access and logistics.  BH 
discussed the meal delivery program with Red Rabbit.  The program has been overwhelmingly 
received well.  JZ thanked BH for his leadership and commitment to GCCS. 

Executive Session 
JZ moved to enter into an Executive Session to discuss personnel matters at 8:20 PM. 

JZ moved to exit the Executive Session at 8:43 PM. 



 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Adjournment 
JZ adjourned the meeting at 8:43 PM. 

All trustee meetings for the Global Community Charter School are open meetings subject to the 
NYS open meetings law. While we encourage public participation and provide a designated time 
for public comment, individuals are limited to two minutes total of public comment each, unless 
the Board asks for additional feedback. All trustees and members of the public must abide by 
Global Community Charter School norms around professionalism and civility in their 
comments, these norms can be found in our school handbook. Complaints against a specific 
employee or public comments that may reveal confidential information will, consistent with the 
open meetings law, be handled through our dispute resolution process or may be heard in 
executive session. 



 
 

 
​  

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

​ ​  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 
 

Board Meeting Minutes 
Global Community Charter School 

October 21, 2020 
6:31 p.m. – 9:06 p.m. (scheduled to convene at 6:30pm) 

Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Trustees (BOT) for Global Community Charter School 
(GCCS) held on October 21, 2020 in the school building at 2350 Fifth Avenue and by 

videoconference. 

JZ noted quorum (JZ, MJ, KM, PG and RM in attendance) and called the meeting to order at 
6:31PM 

Roll Call 
BOT by video conference: James Zika (JZ); Mary Jilek (MJ); Kate McGovern (KM); Rob Moser 
(RM); Ibrahim Yusuf (IY); Nick Pozek (NP); Priyanka Gandhi (PG) 
GCCS Staff: Bill Holmes (BH) 
GCCS Staff by video conference: Kristan Norgrove (KN) 
Parent Representation: None 
BOT Candidates by video conference:  Luke Copley, Anna Houseman and Damaris 
Herron-Watkins 
Public: None 

Public comment 
No public comment. 

Approval of September Minutes 
Noting no discussion.  MJ moved, and PGseconded, a motion “to approve Minutes from the 
September 16 Regular BOT Meeting.”  The motion was passed unanimously (JZ, MJ, KM, RM, 
PG). 

Introduction of Potential Board Member 
JZ introduced Luke Copley and Anna Houseman as potential BOT Members.  The BOT and 
School Leadership, as well as the BOT Candidates, introduce themselves. 

Proposed Changes to GCCS Organizational Chart 
JZ introduced the proposal and BH discussed in more detail the rationale for the changes. 
Questions were discussed about titles and the placement of some teacher groups on the 
organizational chart.  The BOT decided to table further discussion on this proposal until the 
November BOT meeting. 

Education and Accountability Committee (EAC) Update 
KM introduced and discussed the recent meetings of the EAC Committee and the data that they 
reviewed.  This included the very positive assessment results of our PreK cohort who are now in 
our K program. 

Chief Academic Officer (CAO) Report 
KN discussed the current academic activities underway to maintain student engagement and 
appropriate assessments within our remote programs.  KN highlighted how our programs are 



 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

maintaining and honoring the GCCS key design elements.  MJ asked about the teachers and if 
they feel supported and how we are handling chronic absenteeism.  KN discussed how the 
academic leadership team is supporting the teachers and addressing chronic absenteeism. 

Middle School Build Out 
BH discussed the transition of PM responsibilities to DBI and the recent activities around the 
147th Street space.  BH reviewed the “Middle School Space Considerations” Powerpoint that was 
attached to the Agenda.  Five (5) contractor vendors did walkthroughs and provided bids based 
on the Pell Overton architectural drawings.  BH indicated that in recent weeks, two other sites 
have come to our attention for consideration.  BH presented various financial models based on 
the estimated construction costs of $4.5MM as well as the next step he will be working on.  MJ 
shared that she is going to convene more frequent Middle School Task Force meetings. 

Fundraising Task Force Update 
BH shared that GCCS will be receiving a grant for $325,000 over three years from the Walton 
Family Foundation to support our expansion of a Middle School.   KM shared that Deloitte 
donated $1,600 using the Connecting our Kids campaign and thanked IY for his work to make 
this happen. 

Finance Committee Update 
BH provided an update to the BOT on our current operational financials.  BH shared that we are 
slightly under-enrolled versus our budget but are operating at a surplus to the budget.  BH 
shared that we have received a “clean audit” and that the Committee reviewed the initial audit 
documentation with the Auditors. 

Chief Operating Officer Report 
BH discussed our student retention data and how our attrition compares to prior years. 

Executive Session 
JZ moved to enter into an Executive Session to discuss personnel matters at 8:14 PM. 

JZ moved to exit the Executive Session at 9:06 PM. 

Adjournment 
JZ adjourned the meeting at 9:06 PM. 

All trustee meetings for the Global Community Charter School are open meetings subject to the 
NYS open meetings law. While we encourage public participation and provide a designated time 
for public comment, individuals are limited to two minutes total of public comment each, unless 
the Board asks for additional feedback. All trustees and members of the public must abide by 
Global Community Charter School norms around professionalism and civility in their 
comments, these norms can be found in our school handbook. Complaints against a specific 
employee or public comments that may reveal confidential information will, consistent with the 
open meetings law, be handled through our dispute resolution process or may be heard in 
executive session. 







 
 

 
 

 

Global Community Charter School norms around professionalism and civility in their 
comments, these norms can be found in our school handbook. Complaints against a specific 
employee or public comments that may reveal confidential information will, consistent with the 
open meetings law, be handled through our dispute resolution process or may be heard in 
executive session. 
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Board Meeting Minutes 
Global Community Charter School 

December 16, 2020 
6:35 p.m. – 8:32 p.m. (scheduled to convene at 6:30pm) 

Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Trustees (BOT) for Global Community Charter School 
(GCCS) held on December 16, 2020 by videoconference. 

MJ noted quorum (JZ, MJ, KM, PG and RM in attendance) and called the meeting to order at 
6:35PM 

Roll Call 
BOT by video conference: James Zika (JZ); Mary Jilek (MJ); Kate McGovern (KM); Rob Moser 
(RM); Nick Pozek (NP); Priyanka Gandhi (PG) 
GCCS Staff by video conference: Bill Holmes (BH); Kristan Norgrove (KN) 
Parent Representation: None 
BOT Candidates by video conference:  Luke Copley, Anna Houseman, Vidushi Sandhir, Ernie 
Sander, Kallie Aultman and Damaris Herron-Watkins 
Public: None 

Public comment 
MJ welcomed the BOT Candidates in attendance.  No public comment. 

Approval of November Minutes 
Noting no discussion.  JZ moved, and PG seconded, a motion “to approve Minutes from the 
November 18 Regular BOT Meeting.”  The motion was passed unanimously (JZ, MJ, KM, NP, 
RM, PG). 

Introduction of Potential Board Member 
MJ introduced Luke Copley, Anna Houseman, Vidushi Sandhir and Ernie Sander as potential 
BOT Members.  The BOT and School Leadership each introduced themselves.  Each of the 
potential BOT candidates introduced themselves.  MJ spoke about some of the upcoming 
initiatives the BOT is working on. 

Middle School Build-Out Update 
BH discussed the current status of the work with DBI and the information we will be receiving 
concerning the 147th Street option from them in the coming weeks.  The Task Force will convene 
to deep dive into the report after it is received in preparation for an update at the January BOT 
meeting. 

Strategy Task Force Update 
MJ introduced and discussed the recent conversations and activities of the Strategy Task Force 
around branding, obstacles and how the current political landscape might impact enrollment, 
per-pupil funding, etc. that are all key aspects of expansion.  The BOT discussed some of the 
ideas concerning expansion that were raised by Dan Pasek and what they might mean to GCCS 
and the strategic vision we are developing for the school.  There are a number of concerns and 
unknowns that were discussed during the conversation, items that need to continue to be 
discussed in the Strategy Task Force, including enrollment projections, per pupil funding, 



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

impact to school culture, etc.  The discussion moved into a conversation about an Academy 
Model and the pros and cons of that approach. 

Fundraising Task Force Update 
KM discussed the recent activities and discussions that have taken place during the Task Force 
meeting.  KM discussed that the Task Force has gathered responses from Harvest to prior BOT 
questions and currently recommends pausing our pursuit of engaging with Harvest at this time. 

KM updated the BOT on the “Connecting our Kids” campaigns (Giving Tuesday and Year End 
Giving). 

Finance Committee Update 
BH discussed the highlights of the school's financial reports highlighting the strength of our 
current balance sheet given the PPE funds and Walton Grant funds.  A question was raised 
concerning the usage of Walton Grant funds. 

Academic / Education and Accountability Committee (EAC) Update 
KM pointed the BOT to the attachments in the Agenda and a number of the Family Engagement 
events being undertaken by KN and Jasmin.  An issue with contact with the IB folks was 
highlighted and discussed. 

CAO Update 
KN presented and discussed the 2020-2021 Academic Goals and where GCCS stands against 
these goals.  In addition to walking the BOT through various data points, KN discussed how 
these goals and measures of success have been impacted by the COVID model we are working 
within.  Using the Dashboard (attached to the Agenda), KN discussed the attendance results. 
KN discussed the desire to have some form of in-person instruction when and if we can do it 
safely.  PG raised a question about how the Red Rabbit program would work in a hybrid (remote 
and on-site) model if we moved into that model in January. 

COO Update 
BH provided an update on the school facility and readiness for in-person instruction.  BH 
further discussed the status of our student recruitment activities and application status.  BH 
highlighted many of the materials on the GCCS website that have been created to help with 
student recruitment.  MJ asked about how the GCCS trends in applications relate to the sector of 
other charter schools.  BH shared what he had learned during a recent Charter Center meeting. 

Upcoming GCCS Events 
MJ discussed a number of upcoming BOT events and meetings and invited participation of any 
BOT candidates who are interested. 

Adjournment 
MJ adjourned the meeting at 8:32 PM. 



 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

All trustee meetings for the Global Community Charter School are open meetings subject to the 
NYS open meetings law. While we encourage public participation and provide a designated time 
for public comment, individuals are limited to two minutes total of public comment each, unless 
the Board asks for additional feedback. All trustees and members of the public must abide by 
Global Community Charter School norms around professionalism and civility in their 
comments, these norms can be found in our school handbook. Complaints against a specific 
employee or public comments that may reveal confidential information will, consistent with the 
open meetings law, be handled through our dispute resolution process or may be heard in 
executive session. 
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Board Meeting Minutes 
Global Community Charter School 

January 20, 2021 
6:32 p.m. – 8:53 p.m. (scheduled to convene at 6:30pm) 

Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Trustees (BOT) for Global Community Charter School 
(GCCS) held on January 20, 2021 by videoconference. 

JZ noted quorum (JZ, MJ, KM, NP and RM in attendance) and called the meeting to order at 
6:32PM 

Roll Call 
BOT by video conference: James Zika (JZ); Mary Jilek (MJ); Kate McGovern (KM); Rob Moser 
(RM); Nick Pozek (NP); Priyanka Gandhi (PG); Ibrahim Yusuf (IY) 
GCCS Staff by video conference: Bill Holmes (BH); Kristan Norgrove (KN) 
Parent Representation: None 
BOT Candidates by video conference:  Kallie Aultman, Misbah Budhwani, Luke Copley and 
Anna Houseman 
Public: Katrina Flora (from DBI) and James Neu (from DBI) 

Public comment 
No public comment. 

Approval of December Minutes 
Noting no discussion.  KM moved, and MJ seconded, a motion “to approve Minutes from the 
December 16 Regular BOT Meeting.”  The motion was passed unanimously (JZ, MJ, KM, NP, 
RM). 

Introduction of Potential Board Member 
JZ introduced Misbah Budhwani as a potential BOT Member.  Misbah further introduced 
herself.  The BOT and School Leadership each introduced themselves. 

Middle School Expansion Discussion 
JZ introduced the agenda item.  MJ discussed the timeline of activities since the last BOT 
meeting.  Katrina (DBI) led the discussion through some analysis DBI performed following the 
Middle School Task Force discussion about how enrollment would impact the models previously 
presented to the BOT.  The BOT asked questions about the enrollment and per pupil 
assumptions which were addressed by BH and Katrina. 

Katrina and James (DBI) introduced the programmatic and cost trade-offs associated with the 
options for renovations of the 147th St facility.  In addition to financial questions posed by the 
BOT, MJ asked for academic input from KN which KN provided. 

James (DBI) went on to discuss the timeline of activities and financial commitments over the 
next 150 days should the BOT approve the expansion.  Luke asked about the follow-up on 
enrollment projections from the prior Task Force and Committee meeting. 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Open BOT conversion ensued with BOT members and candidates expressing their concerns and 
opinions concerning the limited scope of work versus the full renovation and potential 
fundraising activities that would need to be associated with this decision.  IY raised a number of 
questions concerning financing and the financing assumptions in the DBI model.  Luke 
addressed these questions. 

Noting no further discussion, PG moved, and IY seconded, a motion “to approve a middle school 
expansion project at 218 West 147th Street with a budget not to exceed $5.4M, with landlord 
funding at no less than $1M and, to authorize the Chief Operating Officer to spend up to 
$175,000 over the next sixty (60) days on project costs as presented by DBI.”  The motion was 
passed unanimously (JZ, MJ, KM, NP, RM, PG, IY). 

Academic / Education and Accountability Committee (EAC) Update 
KM discussed some highlights from the Committee minutes attached to the Agenda. 

Adjournment 
JZ adjourned the meeting at 8:53 PM. 

All trustee meetings for the Global Community Charter School are open meetings subject to the 
NYS open meetings law. While we encourage public participation and provide a designated time 
for public comment, individuals are limited to two minutes total of public comment each, unless 
the Board asks for additional feedback. All trustees and members of the public must abide by 
Global Community Charter School norms around professionalism and civility in their 
comments, these norms can be found in our school handbook. Complaints against a specific 
employee or public comments that may reveal confidential information will, consistent with the 
open meetings law, be handled through our dispute resolution process or may be heard in 
executive session. 



 

Board Meeting Minutes 
Global Community Charter School 

February 10, 2021 
6:30 p.m. – 8:28 p.m. (scheduled to convene at 6:30pm) 

Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Trustees (BOT) for Global Community Charter School 
(GCCS) held on February 10, 2021 by videoconference. 

JZ noted quorum (JZ, MJ, KM, NP, PG and RM in attendance) and called the meeting to order 
at 6:30PM 

Roll Call 
BOT by video conference: James Zika (JZ); Mary Jilek (MJ); Kate McGovern (KM); Rob Moser 
(RM); Nick Pozek (NP); Priyanka Gandhi (PG); 
GCCS Staff by video conference: Bill Holmes (BH); Kristan Norgrove (KN) 
Parent Representation: None 
BOT Candidates by video conference:  Vidushi Sandhir, Misbah Budhwani and Luke Copley 
Public: None 

Public comment 
No public comment. 

Approval of January Minutes 
Noting no discussion.  NP moved, and RM seconded, a motion “to approve Minutes from the 
January 20 Regular BOT Meeting.”  The motion was passed unanimously (JZ, MJ, KM, NP, PG, 
RM). 

Family Handbook Update 
BH discussed the proposed changes to the Family Handbook around a process for unenrolling a 
student and how we came about this policy change. BH and KN addressed a number of 
questions from the BOT.  PG raised a question about the notification from last year. 

Noting no further discussion, RM moved, and JZ seconded, a motion “to approve the revisions 
to the SY20-21 Family Handbook as presented.”  The motion was passed unanimously (JZ, MJ, 
NP, RM, KM, PG). 

Real Estate Service Procurements 
BH introduced the three documents attached to the Agenda.  School Leadership is 
recommending our continued work, as documented with DBI under Amendment #1, as 
continuation of the work with this vendor previously awarded by competitive bid.  BH addresses 
questions from the BOT. 

School Leadership and DBI, are recommending our continued work with Pell Overton Architects 
as documented in their January 22, 2021 proposal, as continuation of the work with this vendor 
previously awarded by competitive bid.  BH addressed questions from the BOT. 

School Leadership and DBI, are recommending the award of engineering design service work to 
EMTG per the February 5, 2021 letter from DBI outlining the various bids obtained for these 



 

 

services.  Likewise, School Leadership and DBI, are recommending the award of expediter and 
code consulting service work to JM Zoning per the February 5, 2021 letter from DBI outlining 
the various bids obtained for these services.  BH addressed additional questions from the BOT 
concerning these two competitive bidding opportunities. 

Noting no further discussion, MJ moved and KM seconded, a motion to “to approve the award 
of the Real Estate services to EMTG and JM Zoning per the documents presented and the 
recommendations of School Leadership.”  The motion was passed unanimously (MJ, KM, RM, 
NP, PG). 

Middle School Expansion 
MJ introduced the Agenda item and the attached document. BH shared an overview of the 
middle school design work and current activities on the project plan.  There is a potential site 
visit to the middle school location next Thursday February 18 for interested BOT members. BH 
also introduced the upcoming work that will be required around lease negotiations, term sheets 
and financial tasks around the expansion. 

BH discussed the idea of creating a separate 501cs “Friends of Entity (FOE)” and the documents 
attached to the Agenda.  The BOT discussed various thoughts around involving the BOT with a 
FOE. 

Board Recruitment 
JZ introduced that we have all the paperwork necessary to consider Vidushi Sandhir as a 
member of the BOT.  Vidushi shared some additional thoughts about joining the BOT and 
responded to questions from the BOT.  The BOT discussed her candidacy and thanked Vidushi 
for her participation to date. 

Noting no further discussion, RM moved, and NP seconded, a motion that “After review of a 
thorough criminal history record check via fingerprinting which is deemed acceptable by 
NYSED, and having discovered no State or federal criminal history, or having provided 
information regarding such history to NYSED, if found, and having verified that any academic 
and/or professional credential or qualification presented by Vidushi Sandhir is genuine, and 
having reviewed the application in its entirety, has voted to select Vidushi Sandhir as a member 
to its Board of Trustees, with a term expiring on 2/29/2024, pending approval by NYSED.”  The 
motion was passed unanimously (JZ, MJ, NP, RM, KM, PG).  The resolution approving Vidushi 
Sandhir will be formally adopted upon SED’s approval. 

Fundraising Task Force Update 
KM introduced the Task Force minutes attached to the Agenda.  KM focused BOT attention to 
the Newsletter linked in the minutes and presented ideas on how BOT members can participate 
in fundraising.  MJ asked about the “pause moving forward with Harvest LLC” mentioned in the 
minutes. 

Academic / Education and Accountability Committee (EAC) Update 
None 

Finance Committee Update 



BH introduced the documents attached to the Agenda.  BH highlighted that the PPE loan has 
been forgiven and has moved from a liability to an asset on the balance sheet. 

Chief Academic Officer Report 
KN discussed her thoughts on GCCS’ positive engagement results (92% of students are attending 
/ engaging).  KN went on to provide an update on academic learning results and her perspective 
on the preliminary results she is gathering.  KN addressed a BOT question about the IB renewal 
status and MYP status. 

Chief Operating Officer Report 
BH provided an update on GCCS’ student recruitment and retention status, pointing the BOT to 
the Dashboard.  There are concerns across the NYC charter school community relative to 
student recruitment and application volumes for next year.  BH addressed a number of 
questions from the BOT about the activities we are doing to address the low number of 
applications to date. 

Other Business 
Luke Copley asked a question about reentry plans. KN and BH addressed the question and 
discussed the data that we are using and the organizations with whom we are consulting in this 
planning. 

Adjournment 
JZ adjourned the meeting at 8:28 PM. 

All trustee meetings for the Global Community Charter School are open meetings subject to the 
NYS open meetings law. While we encourage public participation and provide a designated time 
for public comment, individuals are limited to two minutes total of public comment each, unless 
the Board asks for additional feedback. All trustees and members of the public must abide by 
Global Community Charter School norms around professionalism and civility in their 
comments, these norms can be found in our school handbook. Complaints against a specific 
employee or public comments that may reveal confidential information will, consistent with the 
open meetings law, be handled through our dispute resolution process or may be heard in 
executive session. 



Board Meeting Minutes 
Global Community Charter School 

March 17, 2021 
6:31 p.m. – 8:36 p.m. (scheduled to convene at 6:30pm) 

Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Trustees (BOT) for Global Community Charter School 
(GCCS) held on March 17, 2021 by videoconference. 

JZ noted quorum (JZ, MJ, KM, NP, PG and RM in attendance) and called the meeting to order 
at 6:31 PM 

Roll Call 
BOT by video conference: James Zika (JZ); Mary Jilek (MJ); Kate McGovern (KM); Rob Moser 
(RM); Nick Pozek (NP); Priyanka Gandhi (PG); Ibrahim Yusuf (IY) 
GCCS Staff by video conference: Bill Holmes (BH); Kristan Norgrove (KN) 
Parent Representation: None 
BOT Candidates by video conference: Juanita De Castro, Melissa Bramowitz, Anna Houseman 
and Luke Copley 
Public: Nora Clancy and Dan Pasek (Pasek Consulting) 

Public comment 
No public comment. 

Approval of February Minutes 
KM asked a question about the procedures for posting BOT Agenda and Minutes.  BH discussed 
the procedures.  Noting no discussion.  MJ moved, and RM seconded, a motion “to approve 
Minutes from the February 10 Regular BOT Meeting.” The motion was passed unanimously (JZ, 
MJ, KM, NP, PG, IY, RM). 

Charter Renewal Discussion 
Nora Clancy introduced Pasek Consulting and the role they are playing for the GCCS BOT.  Nora 
continued with a presentation providing an overview of the charter renewal process and the next 
steps.  BOT questions were raised and addressed by Nora and Dan about the likely term of our 
renewal, the data that will be use in the renewal application (i.e. benchmark data, test results, 
etc.), how potential site visitations might work and what the BOT might be doing outside of the 
formal process being coordinated by Pasek Consulting. 

BOT Recruitment Updated 
JZ shared that Vidushi Sandhir has been approved by SED.  JZ introduced Juanita De Castro 
and Melissa Bramowitz as new potential BOT members. The BOT and School Leadership, as 
well as the BOT Candidates, introduce themselves. 

Middle School Expansion 
KM shared her experience and observations from making a site visit to the new Middle School 
facility.  BH shared an overview of the current activities around the middle school expansion 
including the lease negotiations, financing options, building and contracting updates, potential 
budget impacts and the likely schedule of some important upcoming dates.  MJ asked KN about 
how the academic team is feeling about the design decisions being made for the Middle School. 



IY asked BH about the second round of PPP funding and any opportunities that might offer 
GCCS.  KM asked BH about the status of the Friends of GCCS organization.  IY initiated a 
discussion about the financial relationship between GCCS and the Friends of GCCS 
organization. 

Fundraising Task Force Update 
KM introduced the Task Force minutes attached to the Agenda.  KM focused BOT attention to a 
discussion the Task Force had about potentially moving forward with Harvest LLC in line with a 
proposal they previously provided to GCCS.  The Task Force will be bringing a formal 
recommendation and updated contract from Harvest LLC to the BOT for a vote. 

Chief Academic Officer Report 
KN highlighted that, based on the low positivity rates, that the school will be opening for 
in-person instruction.  The school is expected to welcome approximately 200 in-person 
students. 

Education and Accountability Committee (EAC) Update 
KM recommended that the BOT consider switching the order of future Agendas to move the 
Academic areas forward in the Agenda.  KM also pointed the BOT’s attention to a number of 
valuable items in the EAC Minutes that were attached to the Agenda. 

Other Business 
JZ asked BH to discuss the status of the lottery and student recruitment. 

JZ thanked the prospective BOT candidates for attending and participating in the meeting. 

Adjournment 
JZ adjourned the meeting at 8:36 PM. 

All trustee meetings for the Global Community Charter School are open meetings subject to the 
NYS open meetings law. While we encourage public participation and provide a designated time 
for public comment, individuals are limited to two minutes total of public comment each, unless 
the Board asks for additional feedback. All trustees and members of the public must abide by 
Global Community Charter School norms around professionalism and civility in their 
comments, these norms can be found in our school handbook. Complaints against a specific 
employee or public comments that may reveal confidential information will, consistent with the 
open meetings law, be handled through our dispute resolution process or may be heard in 
executive session. 



 

Board Meeting Minutes 
Global Community Charter School 

April 21, 2021 
6:31 p.m. – 8:43 p.m. (scheduled to convene at 6:30pm) 

Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Trustees (BOT) for Global Community Charter School 
(GCCS) held on April 21, 2021 by videoconference. 

JZ noted quorum and called the meeting to order at 6:31 PM 

Roll Call 
BOT by video conference: James Zika (JZ); Mary Jilek (MJ); Kate McGovern (KM); Nick Pozek 
(NP); Priyanka Gandhi (PG); Ibrahim Yusuf (IY) 
GCCS Staff by video conference: Bill Holmes (BH); Kristan Norgrove (KN) 
Parent Representation: Tonia Kennedy 
BOT Candidates by video conference: Melissa Bramowitz, Luke Copley, Anna Houseman, and 
Martha Zornow 
Public: Damaris Herron-Watkins, Lisa Holtzmuller, James Neu, Rob Moser, Cliff Schneider 

Public comment 
Ms. Kennedy suggested that parents be more involved in decision making. 

Items for vote 
LH provided overview of changes to 147th St. lease agreement; BOT asked clarifying questions. 

PG moved to approve the Resolutions to Guaranty the 147th St. lease. IY seconded. All in favor. 
Motion passed. 

BH provided explanation of bids considered for assistance with our Development efforts. KM 
moves to authorize partnering with Harvest to support the Development efforts of GCCS. MJ 
seconds. JZ, KM, NP, RM, MJ, VS in favor; IY opposed. Motion passed. 

JZ moves to nominate PG to fill the vacated Secretary Officer role, effective immediately. MJ 
seconds. All in favor. Motion passed. 

Middle School Expansion 

James Neu provided an update on the MS development. He provided an overview of alternate 
improvements that could be made given budget adjustments. BOT agreed on the desire to 
prioritize the sprinkler and standpipe system. James also responded to questions regarding 
contractor bids. 

Charter Renewal 

JZ discussed our renewal timeframe and provided notice of our midterm site visit scheduled for 
May 11th (observations & leadership meeting) & May 14th (focus groups). 



BOT Recruitment Update 
JZ provided a quick overview of BOT candidate status. 

CAO Report 
KN provided an update on ELA testing as well as hybrid learning. 

Adjournment 
JZ adjourned the meeting at 8:43. 



 

Special Meeting 
Board Meeting Minutes 

Global Community Charter School 
May 10, 2021 

5:32 p.m. – 6:38 p.m. (scheduled to convene at 5:30 p.m.) 
Minutes of the special meeting of the Board of Trustees (BOT) for Global Community Charter 

School (GCCS) held on May 10, 2021 by videoconference. 

JZ noted quorum (JZ, MJ, KM, NP, PG, VS in attendance) and called the meeting to order at 
5:32 p.m. 

Roll Call 
BOT by video conference: James Zika (JZ); Mary Jilek (MJ); Kate McGovern (KM); Nick Pozek 
(NP); Priyanka Gandhi (PG); Vidushi Sandhir (VS) 
GCCS Staff by video conference: Bill Holmes (BH); Kristan Norgrove (KN); Jasmin Candelario 
(JC) 
Parent Representation: None 
BOT Candidates by video conference: Luke Copley (LC) 
Public: Nora Clancy (NC) 

Public comment 
None. 

Items for vote 
JZ introduced that we have all the paperwork necessary to consider Luke Copley and Anna 
Houseman as members of the BOT. The BOT discussed their candidacy and thanked Luke and 
Anna for their participation to date. 

Noting no further discussion, PG moved, and NP seconded, a motion that “After review of a 
thorough criminal history record check via fingerprinting which is deemed acceptable by 
NYSED, and having discovered no State or federal criminal history, or having provided 
information regarding such history to NYSED, if found, and having verified that any academic 
and/or professional credential or qualification presented by Luke Copley is genuine, and having 
reviewed the application in its entirety, has voted to select Luke Copley as a member to its Board 
of Trustees, with a term expiring on 5/31/2024, pending approval by NYSED.” The motion was 
passed unanimously (JZ, MJ, KM, NP, PG, VS). The resolution approving Luke Copley will be 
formally adopted upon SED’s approval. 

MJ moved, and PG seconded, a motion that “After review of a thorough criminal history record 
check via fingerprinting which is deemed acceptable by NYSED, and having discovered no State 
or federal criminal history, or having provided information regarding such history to NYSED, if 
found, and having verified that any academic and/or professional credential or qualification 
presented by Anna Houseman is genuine, and having reviewed the application in its entirety, 
has voted to select Anna Houseman as a member to its Board of Trustees, with a term expiring 
on 5/31/2024, pending approval by NYSED.” The motion was passed unanimously (JZ, MJ, KM, 
NP, PG, VS). The resolution approving Anna Houseman will be formally adopted upon SED’s 
approval. 



Charter Renewal 
NC presented an overview on key topics, including SWD enrollment, pandemic response, parent 
engagement, middle school expansion, and BOT membership ahead of the BOT site visit on May 
14th. 

KN discussed academic program improvements and performance in a remote / hybrid learning 
environment. JZ discussed board strengths and the format of the site visit. 

Adjournment 
JZ adjourned the meeting at 6:38 p.m. 



Board Meeting Minutes 
Global Community Charter School 

May 26, 2021 
6:32 p.m. – 8:32 p.m. (scheduled to convene at 6:30pm) 

Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Trustees (BOT) for Global Community Charter School 
(GCCS) held on May 26, 2021 by videoconference. 

JZ noted quorum and called the meeting to order at 6:32 PM 

Roll Call 
BOT by video conference: James Zika (JZ); Mary Jilek (MJ); Kate McGovern (KM); Priyanka 
Gandhi (PG); Luke Copley (LC); Anna Houseman (AH) 
GCCS Staff by video conference: Bill Holmes (BH); Kristan Norgrove (KN) 
Parent Representation: Marsha Taylor, Denisse Ambert 
BOT Candidates by video conference: Martha Zornow (MZ), Juanita de Castro (JC), Misbah 
Budhwani (MB) 
Public: None. 

Public comment 
None. 

Approval of March, April, and May Special Minutes 
PG moved, and JZ seconded, a motion “to approve the Minutes from the March 17 Regular BOT 
Meeting.”  The motion was passed unanimously. 

MJ moved, and JZ seconded, a motion “to approve the Minutes from the April 21 Regular BOT 
Meeting.”  The motion was passed unanimously. 

KM moved, and NP seconded, a motion “to approve the Minutes from the May 10 Special BOT 
Meeting.”  The motion was passed unanimously. 

Items for vote 
JZ moved to nominate LC to fill the vacant Treasury Officer role, effective immediately for the 
remainder of the 2021 school year. MJ seconded. The motion was passed unanimously. 

FY 2021-2022 Budget, Organizational Chart, and Calendar 
BH provided an overview of the budget for the FY 2021-2022 academic school year and 
answered questions. AH inquired about enrollment assumptions and efforts underway. JC and 
MZ asked about the timing of federal fund payments, the cash flow implications, and the type of 
expenditures that the funding can cover. MZ, PG, LC, and AH explored teacher recruitment and 
retention, 403b benefits, and leadership incentives. 

KN and BH explained changes to and answered questions regarding the FY 2021-2022 
organizational chart given the need for leadership across the elementary and middle school 
campuses. MZ asked about the potential for the middle school assistant dean to increase 
leadership and role over time. KM inquired about the role and bandwidth of the MS leadership 
in providing data for the EAC. AH requested additional detail about the IB coordinator and dean 



roles. LC asked about the process and timing of hiring the development coordinator. Noting no 
further discussion, JZ moved, and IY seconded, a motion “to approve the School Year 
2021-2022 Budget and Organizational Chart presented.” The motion was passed unanimously. 

KN and BH led discussion regarding the school calendar for FY 2021-2022. JZ suggested that 
the BOT revisit the calendar after school leadership confirms aspects around orientation. 

BH provided detail on the draft sublease for the middle school. Discussion ensued around the 
payment schedule. BOT agreed to revisit the agreement once payment numbers are finalized. 

SED Site Visit 
JZ, KN, and BH provided a summary of the SED site visit discussions. BH offered background 
around the Notice of Deficiency for SWD that GCCS received and the plan to remedy. 

Summer Meetings 
JZ provided a description of the purpose and intent of the Summer BOT meetings, including 
strategy setting, reviewing self-evaluations, voting on a new officer slate, and other BOT matters. 
Discussion ensued around the format and structure of the meetings. 

EAC Update 
KM and KN updated the BOT on recent EAC discussions around state testing, summer school, 
PYP certification, and trends around remote instruction. 

Adjournment 
JZ adjourned the meeting at 8:32. 



  

 

Board Meeting Minutes 
Global Community Charter School 

June 16, 2021 
6:40 p.m. – 9:02 p.m. (scheduled to convene at 6:30pm) 

Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Trustees (BOT) for Global Community Charter School 
(GCCS) held on June 16, 2021 in the school building at 2350 Fifth Avenue and by 

videoconference. 

MJ noted quorum and called the meeting to order at 6:40 PM. 

Roll Call 
BOT in attendance: Kate McGovern (KM); Priyanka Gandhi (PG) 
BOT by video conference: James Zika (JZ); Mary Jilek (MJ); Nick Pozek (NP); Luke Copley 
(LC); Anna Houseman (AH); Vidushi Sandhir (VS) 
GCCS Staff in attendance: Bill Holmes (BH) 
BOT Candidates in attendance: Misbah Budhwani (MB); Juanita De Castro (JC) 
BOT Candidates by video conference: Martha Zornow (MZ) 
Public: Denisse Ambert; Marsha Taylor 

Public Comment 
None. 

Approval of May Minutes 
NP moved, and AH seconded, a motion to approve the Minutes from the May 26 Regular BOT 
Meeting. The motion was passed unanimously. 

Items for Vote 
BH provided detail on updates made to the School Year 2021-2022 calendar and answered BOT 
questions. KM made a suggestion to add summer dates to the calendar. JZ moved, and LC 
seconded, a motion to approve the calendar for the school year 2021-2022 with the inclusion of 
the summer dates as requested. The motion was passed unanimously. 

PG moved, and KM seconded, a motion to approve the updated Complaint Policy as presented 
to the BOT. The motion was passed unanimously. 

BH provided an overview of the changes made to the Enrollment and Admissions Policy to 
address deficiencies in enrollment of students with disabilities (SWD) through increasing the 
number of lottery entries for SWD. MZ requested that the lottery selection section be updated to 
clarify the order in which the lottery is drawn. JZ moved, and MJ seconded, a motion to approve 
the updated Enrollment and Admissions Policy as presented to the BOT with an update to 
clarify the order of lottery drawing. The motion was passed unanimously. 

BOT discussed changes to the Key Design Elements to include the middle school program. PG 
moved, and LC seconded, a motion to approve the updated Key Design Elements as presented to 
the BOT. The motion was passed unanimously. 



 

 

 

BOT discussed changes to the Mission statement to include the Pre-K and middle school grades. 
JZ proposed that GCCS update to reflect serving “Harlem and the surrounding communities” to 
mirror the website. BOT agreed to revisit during the June Annual Planning Meeting. 

BOT discussed the draft sublease between GCCS and its sublandlord for the premises located at 
218 W 147th St. BH and LC discussed the inclusion of the Overlease as an exhibit. AH moved, 
and PG seconded, a motion to approve the sublease as presented to the BOT with the Overlease 
included as an exhibit. The motion was passed unanimously. 

MJ introduced that we have all the paperwork necessary to consider Misbah Budhwani and 
Juanita De Castro as members of the BOT. The BOT discussed their candidacy and thanked 
Misbah and Juanita for their participation to date. 

Noting no further discussion, PG moved, and JZ seconded, a motion that “After review of a 
thorough criminal history record check via fingerprinting which is deemed acceptable by 
NYSED, and having discovered no State or federal criminal history, or having provided 
information regarding such history to NYSED, if found, and having verified that any academic 
and/or professional credential or qualification presented by Misbah Budhwani is genuine, and 
having reviewed the application in its entirety, has voted to select Misbah Budhwani as a 
member to its Board of Trustees, with a term expiring on 6/30/2024, pending approval by 
NYSED.” The motion was passed unanimously. The resolution approving Misbah Budhwani will 
be formally adopted upon SED’s approval. 

Noting no further discussion, LC moved, and AH seconded, a motion that “After review of a 
thorough criminal history record check via fingerprinting which is deemed acceptable by 
NYSED, and having discovered no State or federal criminal history, or having provided 
information regarding such history to NYSED, if found, and having verified that any academic 
and/or professional credential or qualification presented by Juanita De Castro is genuine, and 
having reviewed the application in its entirety, has voted to select Juanita De Castro as a 
member to its Board of Trustees, with a term expiring on 6/30/2024, pending approval by 
NYSED.” The motion was passed unanimously. The resolution approving Juanita De Castro will 
be formally adopted upon SED’s approval. 

Middle School Expansion 
BH provided an update on the middle school buildout and noted the weekly walkthroughs 
conducted alongside Jasmin Candelario, as well as the fact that the project is on schedule and on 
budget. BH previewed the loan agreements for the BOT to revisit following review from counsel. 

EAC Update 
KM provided an update on student performance, noting potential suggestions to improve lower 
performance in grades 3-5 and the EAC’s focus on the IB renewal process and outreach 
regarding summer school enrollment and responses to the NYC DOE survey. MJ provided 
updates from Jasmin regarding data requests made of the school. 

Academic and Operations Update 
BH described new hires made across various departments as well as outstanding position 
vacancies. BOT and candidates discussed recruitment strategy for events and interviews. 



BH provided an update on summer school enrollment. BOT engaged in discussion with parent 
representatives around potential reasons for low summer school enrollment.  BH discussed 
enrollment for the fall, including applications verified and inbound interest, as well as 
comparison versus budget and an update on the audit process. 

Fundraising Update 
KM provided an update on the engagement with Harvest and future fundraising BOT sessions. 
KM and BH also discussed potential fundraising opportunities. 

Other 
BOT discussed upcoming events and BOT action items. 

BOT entered into executive session at 8:29PM to discuss personnel matters. 

Adjournment 
MJ adjourned the meeting at 9:02. 



Board Planning Meeting Minutes 
Global Community Charter School 

June 21, 2021 
6:32 PM – 8:57 PM (scheduled to convene at 6:30 PM) 

Minutes of the planning meeting of the Board of Trustees (BOT) for Global Community Charter 
School (GCCS) held on June 21, 2021 by videoconference. 

JZ noted quorum and called the meeting to order at 6:32 PM. 

Roll Call 
BOT by video conference: James Zika (JZ); Mary Jilek (MJ); Kate McGovern (KM); Nick Pozek 
(NP); Priyanka Gandhi (PG); Luke Copley (LC); Anna Houseman (AH); Ibrahim Yusuf (IY) 
GCCS Staff by video conference: Bill Holmes (BH), Jasmin Candelario (JC) 
BOT Candidates by video conference: Misbah Budhwani (MB); Juanita De Castro (JDC); Martha 
Zornow (MZ) 
Barton Gilman by video conference: Lisa Holtzmuller (LH) 
Public: None. 

Public Comment 
None. 

Middle School Expansion 
BOT entered into Executive Session at 6:35 PM to solicit legal advice and exited Executive 
Session at 7:07 PM. 

PG moved, and LC seconded, a motion to adopt the Resolutions of the BOT dated June 21, 2021. 
The motion was passed unanimously. 

Items for Vote 
BOT deliberated around changes to the Mission statement and a plan to revisit the mission 
statement with the strategy task force alongside GCCS’s 10-year anniversary. AH moved, and MJ 
seconded, a motion to adopt the revised mission statement as discussed during the meeting. The 
motion was passed unanimously. 

BOT discussed the officer slate for the upcoming school year, with James Zika as Chair, Anna 
Houseman as Vice Chair, Luke Copley as Treasurer and Chair of the Finance Committee, 
Priyanka Gandhi as Secretary, and Kate McGovern as Chair of the Education and Accountability 
Committee.  MJ moved, and PG seconded, a motion to approve the officer slate, effective July 1, 
2021. The motion was passed unanimously. 

BOT also discussed chair assignments for the Strategy, and Middle School Task Forces. 

Academic and Operations Update 
BH and JC provided an update on teacher recruitment efforts made to date, and BOT explored 
additional options to find talent. 



JC described and answered BOT questions around professional development and leadership 
opportunities available for existing teaching staff. BH explained professional development 
opportunities and room for improvement for operations staff. 

BOT entered into Executive Session at 8:38 PM to discuss personnel issues. BOT exited 
Executive Session at 8:53 PM. 

Adjournment 
JZ adjourned the meeting at 8:57 PM. 















 

 

   
 

  
 

 

 

 
  
 

  

  

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

  

 

 

Laura, 

I wanted to take a moment to summarize the fire alarm situation. 

Global Community Charter School is legally able to occupy and operate the building at 
218 W. 147th Street (aka 219 W. 146th Street) as a school per our Letter of Verification 
and Certificate of Occupancy. 

Prior to Global’s occupancy of the building, a fire alarm system was installed. 

As a part of the renovation 
work during the Summer of 2021, GCCS voluntarily upgraded the building’s life safety 
systems – installing an entirely new fire alarm system and a new sprinkler and 
standpipe system. 

GCCS filed the application for the new fire alarm system with FDNY on June 17, 2021 
and received approval on September 15, 2021. The approved plans, TM1 and Letter of 
Acceptance issued by FDNY are attached. 

The new fire alarm system was installed and successfully tested by High Rise Fire & 
Security. Attached is a signed maintenance and central station monitoring contract with 
High Rise who continues to oversee and monitor the new the FA system. High Rise also 
issued the attached letter of completion upon the successful testing of the system and 
the Engineer of Record, EMTG, issued an affidavit which confirms conformance of the 
system with the approved plans as well as 100% operability. We have been conducting 
fire safety drills with our staff and students this year. 

As the next step in the process, GCCS’s expediter has requested an inspection with 
FDNY. Due to current FDNY lead times, we anticipate receiving an inspection around 
the end of this year. 

Additionally, I have requested from the FDNY & DOE that my current S95 and D10 
certificates (attached), which authorize me to supervise the fire alarm system and 
conduct fire safety drills in schools, be reissued to reflect the address of the middle 
school. I am awaiting the reissuance of those certificates. 

Attached documents supporting our fire safety systems are as follows: 

 Page 1: Affidavit from EMTG Consultants regarding the fire alarm system’s 
installation in accordance with New York City Building Code requirements. 

 Page 2: FDNY acceptance and approval of our fire alarm installation per building 
plans filed with the NYC Department of Buildings 

 Pages 3-7: Approved TM-1 Application for our Fire Alarm system by FDNY 

 Page 8: Letter of Completion and attestation of 100% operable fire alarm system 
from High Rise Fire & Security, with whom we have a maintenance contract to 
maintain the fire alarm system. 



     
  

  

   
 

    
    

    

   
 

     
  

    

   

 Page 9: Current D10 Certificate of Fitness to conduct Fire Safety Drills – awaiting 
an updated address to reflect middle school address from NYC Department of 
Education. 

 Page 10: Current S95 Certificate to supervise Fire Alarm Systems – pending 
updated middle school address from FDNY. 

 Pages 11-14: Letter of no objection from the NYC Department of Buildings 
regarding GCCS’ use of 219 West 146th St as a school 

 Pages 15-19: Certificate of Occupancy for 219 West 146th St 

 Pages 20-27: Maintenance Contract with High Rise Fire & Security for 
monitoring & inspection of our fire alarm system. 

 Pages 28-37: FDNY Approved building plans for the Fire Alarm system as laid 
out at 219 West 147th St 

 Pages 38-39: List of violations from initial FDNY inspection 8/23/21 

 Page 40: Description of each violation & cures to each as of 10/13/21 



  
 

  
   

          

                

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EMTG CONSULTANTS, INC. 
CONSULTING ENGINEERS 

236 Mineola Boulevard, Mineola, New York, 11501 

October 12, 2021 

Friends of Global Community Charter School 

Attn: Bill Holmes 

2350 5th Avenue 

New York, New York 10037 

Regarding: Affidavit for 219 West 146th Street Global Community Charter School 

New Fire System, Floors 1 thru 3 and Roof 

Dear Mr. Holmes, 

I, Shahram Lotfi, P.E. license number 070045 do hereby certify that based on the 

approved FDNY plans dated September 15, 2021 (FPIMS No. 2021-TMFALM-005203), 

the installed fire alarm system is per EMTG’s design and is in accordance with the New 

York City Building Code requirements. 

Except for the testing of the elevator recall, the newly installed Pull Stations, Smoke, 

Duct and CO detectors, Horn Strobes, Strobe Lights, Tamper Switches, Smoke Dampers, 

Fire Alarm Control Panel and Fire Alarm Remote Annunciator have been successfully 

tested and the system is 100% operable. 

If you have any questions as to the functionality of the current system, please don’t 

hesitate to reach out. 

Respectfully, 

Shahram Lotfi, Principle 

EMG Consultants, Inc. 

CC: Daniel Liu, FDNY Examiner 

CC: Miguel A. Bautista, FDNY Public Buildings Unit 

EMTG- 1 



 

 

BUREAU OF FIRE PREVENTION 
9 Metro Tech Center, 3rd Floor 

Brooklyn ,NY,11201 

To: Shahram Lotfi 

From : New York City Fire Department 

Date Sep 15, 2021 

Record ID: 2021-TMFALM-005203-PLAN 

Premises Address: 219 West 146th Street, Manhattan NY 10039 BIN 

Application Type: Fire Alarm Application 

Result:          Letter of Acceptance 

The Fire Department has reviewed your fire alarm application filed under above reference number and your application is hereby 
approved. The proposed fire alarm installation is subject to audibility & visibility throughout the premises.  

This letter along with approved TM-1 and approved plans shall be presented at the time of scheduling an inspection to the Fire Alarm 
Inspection Unit (FAIU). The final approval is subject to inspection. 

In the interest of public safety, the Fire Commissioner may revoke, modify or require additional safeguards not expressed in this letter. 

By Order of, 
Chief of Fire Prevention 

Page 1 of 1 











     
   
   
     
   
    
   

 
  

     

 

 
 

    
  

   
  

 
  

  
  

 
 

        

 
 

  
 

  
    

     
   

   

   
 

   
 

  
  

  
      

 
   

    
 

   
               

    
  

 
   

   
 

  
  

  
 

  

  

6 Filing Representative Provide name, business address, telephone, e-mail and Registration Number 
(Reg. No.) of the filing representative. Registration Number is the number 
issued by NYC Fire Department as filing representative (Expeditor). 

7 Building Characteristics and 
Fire Protection Features 

Indicate the height of the building, number of stories and type of construction, 
and if the building is located in an area of special flood hazard. Indicate if 
building is fully sprinklered, partially sprinklered, or non-sprinklered. If partial 
sprinklered protection is provided, indicate the floors that are protected by 
sprinklers. 

8 Classification of Work Check (X) the appropriate box to indicate whether the plan submission is new, 
additions/ modifications, or post approval amendment (PAA). If it is a PAA, 
indicate the document number and in job description (Section 10) include the 
reason for the PAA request.  This section must be completed for all Fire 
Alarm and ARCS applications. 

9 Building Code Applicable 
To Project 

Check (X) the appropriate review request. This section must be completed 
for all Fire Alarm and ARCS applications. 

10 Job Description Give a detailed description of job. Attach a separate narrative page with detailed proposed 
job description. For fire alarm and ARCS applications: Describe the type of system 
proposing to install as per Building Code/Fire Code for all “FA” applications. 

11 Filed to comply with 
section of Code, Rules 

Indicate the section of the code or rule. If additional factors to be considered, 
please specify. Use additional sheets if necessary. 

12 Asbestos Abatement 
Compliance 

Complete section and attach respective DEP Forms 
ACP 5  OR Certificate of Occupancy. Required for Fire Alarm, ARCS 
and Non-Water Fire Suppression applications. 

13 Landmarks Section If marked yes: For Interior Landmarks, provide Landmarks approval. For 
Individual Landmarks & buildings in Historic Districts, provide documentation 
signed and stamped by P.E. or R.A. stating “Scope of work is under exemptions 
for Landmarks approval and the exterior will not be altered in any way.” 
Statement may be on separate sheet of paper or on plans. If the exterior will be 
altered, provide Landmarks approval. 

14 Flood Hazard Area If yes, provide statement on plans; “Design is in compliance with NYC DOB Building 
Code Appendix G.”  Required for Fire Alarm and ARCS applications only. 

15 Applicant’s Statement and 
Signature 

Applicant must sign and date the application. 

16 Property Owner 
Information 

Provide the name, business name, address, telephone, fax, and e-mail of the 
property owner. 

17 Property Owner’s Statement 
and Signature 

Owner must sign and date the application. 

Application Fees: Choose type of your plan as indicated below and submit appropriate fees with each application: 
1 Plan Examination FC 105.4 $420 
2 Fire Alarm Plan /ARCS $420 
3 Emergency Alarm Plan FC 908 $420 
4 Document Review $420 
5 Fire Suppression Plan (mechanical portion) $420 
6 New Technology/Technical Analysis including 

FC102.8 & FC104.9 
$525 (in addition to Plan Examination Fee) 

7 Document Processing Fee $165 (in addition to other applicable fees) 
8  ARCS Commissioning Test Report $420 

***Late Plan Filing: 50% to 100% surcharge (based on filing delay) *** 
Document Processing Fee (applications not requiring DOB work permit), 
including ARC Systems, Emergency Alarm, Fire Alarm, Non-Water Fire 
Suppression Systems and Rangehood 

TM-1 (03-01-21) 

5 OF 5



 

 

 

 

Letter of Completion 
09/07/2021 

Client: Global Community Charter School 

Address: 218 West 147th Street 
New York, NY 10039 

Job Re: High Rise Fire and Security Project HJ 7509 
New Manual & Automatic Smoke, Carbon Monoxide Detection And Sprinkl 
218 West 147th Street 
New York, NY 10039 

                  
                  

         

        
       Moises Ruiz at mruiz@highrisefire.com. 
       Aoife Kenny at akenny@highrisefire.com. 

Our Office Business Hours 
0  – 5:3   (M-F) 

24 hour service line: 718-369-3434 (Dial 5 for emergency)  
Website: www.highrisefire.com 

Once again, I would like to thank you for your most valued business and we look forward to working 
together in the future. 

Thank you, 

Mousami Berawala 
Project Manager 

http:www.highrisefire.com
mailto:akenny@highrisefire.com
mailto:mruiz@highrisefire.com






 
 
 

 
 

  
   

  
   
   

  
  

 
   

  
  
  
 

 
 

 
    

    
   

   
 
 

           
               

 
 

    
             

           
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

  
   

 
 

 
           

 
   

       
 

   

 
 
 
 

   
 

 
   
   

 
 

       

       

   

  

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

Melanie La Rocca 
Commissioner 

Lisa Amoia RA. 
Dep. Borough Commissioner 
LAmoia@buildings.nyc.gov 

280 B oadway, 3 d Fl. 

New Yo k, NY 10007 

www.nyc.gov/buildings 

212-393-2019 Tel 

646-500-6170 Fax 

build  afe|live  afe 

May 12  2021 

New Yo k City Office 
New Yo k State Education Depa tment 
Bu eau of P op ieta y School Supe vision 
116 West 32nd St eet, 5th Floo  
New Yo k, New Yo k 10001 
Telephone Numbe : (212) 643-4760 

Re: 219 West 146th St eet 
BLOCK: 2032   LOT: 17 
ZONING DISTRICT: R7-2 
Manhattan 

To Whom It May Concern: 

This is in response to your request dated Novembe  17, 2020 for a Lette  of 
Ve ification for 219 West 146th St eet for a School. Depa tment Reco ds, 
Ce tificate of Occupancy # 73226, indicates a Three (3) Story building used a 
School  Use Group 3 as the use of the building. 

The Department verifies the above-mentioned premises is a School  Use G oup 3 on 
Floo s one (1) th ough th ee (3) and accesso y use of the Roof  at the above 
referenced premises. 

If this building is hereafter altered or its use changes  an application for such alteration 
work or change of use must be filed and a certificate of occupancy shall be issued 
pursuant to Article 22 of Sub-Chapter 1 of the Administrative Code of the City of New 
York. 

Please contact me if you have any additional questions or concerns regarding this 
matter. For more specific property information  please visit the “Building Information 
System” on our web site: www.nyc.gov/buildings. 

Sincerely  

Lisa Amoia  RA 
Deputy Borough Commissioner 
Manhattan 

LA/ 

Cc: John Raine  RA  Borough Commissioner
      Cecil N. Khurdan  Plan Examiner 

Premises File
      LNO Files 

www.nyc.gov/buildings
www.nyc.gov/buildings
mailto:LAmoia@buildings.nyc.gov


























































 

               

 

                   

 

                   

       

                   

     

                   

         

               

                  

           

           

               

            

                 

               

             

               

             

   

               

            

     

             

             

             

 

             

             

             

     

Violation Description Status 

Failure to maintain records of inpections of the 
sprinker/standpipe system. 

The system is brand new. We have a service 
contract with Ashlar Mechanical systems to 
inspect and test the system monthly. 

Failure to maintain the interior fire alarm in good working 
order. 

The system is fully functioning and in good 
working order. See attached attestations from 
EMTG & High Rise Fire Safety. The fire alarm 
panel was displaying a "trouble" signal during the 
inspection, which was fixed the same day. 

Failure to provide a certificate of fitness holder for the 
supervision of the fire alarm. 

My certificate of fitness is being transferred to 
the 147th st address. Awaiting the new 
certificate from FDNY. 

Failure to provide a certificate of fitness holder for the 
conduction of fire drills. 

My certificate of fitness is being transferred to 
the 147th st address. Awaiting updated 
certificate from NYC DOE. 

Failure to provide a certificate of fitness holder for the 
maintenance of the standpipe system. 

Certificate holder is Ashlar Mechanical, who we 
have a maintenance contract with to provide 
monthly inspections and tests of the standpipe 
system. 

Failre to maintain service tags on fire extinguishers. 

All fire extinguishers have been properly tagged 
by Master Fire, who will provide annual 
inspection and new tags on every fire 
extinguisher in the building. 



 

 
 

 

 
  

                       
                                                                                                                                        

                                                                                                    

 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

      

        

    

     

 

   
 

        

  

 

                      

  
 

       

                
  

 

 

 

                  

       

           

         

 

 

 

     
  

                            
 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

Global Community Charter School 

2350 5th Avenue 

New York NY 10037 

Global Community Charter School 

2350 5th Avenue 

New York NY 10037 

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
9 METROTECH CENTER   BROOKLYN, N.Y. 11201-3857 

BUREAU OF FIRE PREVENTION 

Public Buildings Unit 
DATE: 07.09.2021. 

PREMISES 

To Whom It May Concern: 

The New York City Fire Department (“FDNY”), Bureau of Fire Prevention, Public Buildings Unit conducted an 

inspection of the above-referenced premises on 09.21.2021. 

XXX The inspection did not reveal any violations that FDNY’s Public Buildings Unit is authorized 

to inspect and enforce. 

Note: Re-inspection conducted on 06.30.2021. FDNY Summons 11743211Y released. 

The inspection resulted in issuance of violations of the Fire Code or other laws, rules or regulations 

that FDNY’s Public Buildings Unit is authorized to inspect and enforce. 

As of XXXXXX documents were submitted to FDNY as proof of correction, and such correction was deemed 

acceptable to FDNY 

The inspection, and a review of premises records, has disclosed that the premises may not be in compliance with 

the lawful occupancy established by the New York City Department of Buildings. 

This letter shall not be construed to be a permit for, or an approval of the premises. FDNY does not certify that the 

premises is free from any violation for which it has not inspected, in accordance with its standard inspection protocols. 

This letter shall not prevent FDNY from inspecting the premises at a later date, requiring the correction of any 

deficiencies its finds at the premises, and/or issuing violations against the premises for conditions that do not comply with 

the Fire Code or other laws, rules or regulations. 

Examined by: _________________________________________ 

Tomasz Korbas, Supervising Inspector, PBU 



 
 
 

 
 

  
   

  
   
   

  
  

 
   

  
  
  
 

 
 

 
    

    
   

   
 
 

           
               

 
 

    
             

           
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

  
   

 
 

 
           

 
   

       
 

   

 
 
 
 

   
 

 
   
   

 
 

       

       

   

  

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

Melanie La Rocca 
Commissioner 

Lisa Amoia RA. 
Dep. Borough Commissioner 
LAmoia@buildings.nyc.gov 

280 B oadway, 3 d Fl. 

New Yo k, NY 10007 

www.nyc.gov/buildings 

212-393-2019 Tel 

646-500-6170 Fax 

build  afe|live  afe 

May 12  2021 

New Yo k City Office 
New Yo k State Education Depa tment 
Bu eau of P op ieta y School Supe vision 
116 West 32nd St eet, 5th Floo  
New Yo k, New Yo k 10001 
Telephone Numbe : (212) 643-4760 

Re: 219 West 146th St eet 
BLOCK: 2032   LOT: 17 
ZONING DISTRICT: R7-2 
Manhattan 

To Whom It May Concern: 

This is in response to your request dated Novembe  17, 2020 for a Lette  of 
Ve ification for 219 West 146th St eet for a School. Depa tment Reco ds, 
Ce tificate of Occupancy # 73226, indicates a Three (3) Story building used a 
School  Use Group 3 as the use of the building. 

The Department verifies the above-mentioned premises is a School  Use G oup 3 on 
Floo s one (1) th ough th ee (3) and accesso y use of the Roof  at the above 
referenced premises. 

If this building is hereafter altered or its use changes  an application for such alteration 
work or change of use must be filed and a certificate of occupancy shall be issued 
pursuant to Article 22 of Sub-Chapter 1 of the Administrative Code of the City of New 
York. 

Please contact me if you have any additional questions or concerns regarding this 
matter. For more specific property information  please visit the “Building Information 
System” on our web site: www.nyc.gov/buildings. 

Lisa Amoia  RA 
Deputy Borough Commissioner 
Manhattan 

Sincerely  

LA/ 

Cc: John Raine  RA  Borough Commissioner
      Cecil N. Khurdan  Plan Examiner 

Premises File
      LNO Files 

www.nyc.gov/buildings
www.nyc.gov/buildings
mailto:LAmoia@buildings.nyc.gov
























 
  

 
  

Global Community Charter School replaced its entire fire alarm system in May 
2018, and filed the new architect drawings with the New York City Department of 
Buildings ( NYC DoB) for approval. An inspection with the New York City Fire 
Department will be scheduled once the plans are approved by NYC DoB. 
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